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Bursar’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
Introduction

The attached Financial Statements consolidate the financial results of subsidiary and associate companies
which it controls, (e.g. student residences and conferencing activities) with the University’s core teaching and
research activities. The accounting policies set out in the notes on pages 17-23 form part of the financial
statements.

The University also publishes annual financial accounts in an agreed ‘HEA Harmonised’ format. A copy of
these accounts is included on pages 80 to 119 and a reconciliation of results between the two is included at
page 45.

Overview

The University is pleased once again to report an operating surplus of €3m for the year ended 30" September
2019 (2018: €7.5m). The University continues to effectively manage its affairs and associated risks against a
backdrop of limited Government funding. The operational, financial, and strategic risks faced by the
University were escalated early in the new year (Spring 2020) with the amrival of the Corona Virus COVID-19
in Europe. Added to the uncertain impact of Britain’s exit from the EU, these risks continue to pose major
threats to the Irish economy with potential negative financial impacts nationally and correspondingly for the
University.

At the time of writing (Summer 2020), the University is confident of dealing with the impacts of the
aforementioned risks in the 2019/20 financial year. However, the reality is that we must budget for a
significant deficit in 2020/21 and potentially beyond. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the University’s strong
balance sheet provides the basis for confidence in the continued applicability of the going concern concept to
these and to future financial statements.

As demographic projections have shown, the trend is for increasing numbers of second level students
progressing to third level education. These trends are reflected in attached accounts as noted below under
‘Operating Results’. The general economic outlook turned negative over the Spring and early Summer of
2020 due to COVID-19. The potential for high levels of unemployment, particularly in the leisure and
entertainment sectors (where large numbers of students find ‘summer work®), is very real. The impacts on
fiscal returns and on Government funding to the third level sector are highly likely to be negative.

As the University launches its ambitious strategic plan for the coming five years, it does so with an increased
emphasis on non-state income streams. Foremost in this category is that of Post graduate and non-EU student
fees as well as high standard ‘on-campus’ student accommodation and associated summer lettings.

Operating Results

The reported surplus for the year at €3m is attributable in no small part to increased fee income and well
controlled costs. Fee income has risen by €6m due to a combination of increased student numbers, increased
fees and a change in mix of students, which has also generated additional Government Grant income via the
‘RGAM’ funding mechanism. Staff costs have increased by €17m during the year due to a mix of increased
Contract Research, restoration of pay cuts, annual increments, actuarial impacts for pension and increased
staff headcount.

Liquidity

The continuing strong level of liquidity displayed in the Statement of Financial Position reflects the business
model in which the University operates with much of its core funding being ‘front loaded’. The University
also has significant reserves as measured under FRS 102, One cause of concern, across the sector, is the

balance due from Government in relation to pensions as can be seen in the increase in pension debtor in 2019
to €7.4m (2018: €2.8m).
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Cash & Investments

During the year the University approved an investment strategy and appointed new investment advisors and
investment managers. The physical transfer of funds was taking place at the end of the financial year resulting
in a higher cash balance than usual. Within two months of the year-end, a total of €50m was under investment
in medium and long-term instruments. A further €10m is held in cash under the stewardship of our
investment managers.

Significant Capital Developments

September 2018 saw the opening of Goldcrest Village, our new student residence comprising of 429 beds.
This resulted in a significant increase in rental income for the University during the year. The income is used
to service the European Investment Bank (EIB) loan interest and repayments, the first capital repayment
falling due in July 2020. In June 2019, we drew down a further €21m, the second tranche of the EIB loan.
This will facilitate the construction an additional 674 student accommodation beds, to be known as Dunlin
Village, for which planning permission was granted during the year.

The University secured €15m towards its learning commons, a reimagined library space for the twenty first
century. The funding was a result of a competitive bid to the Higher Education Authority’s Strategic Initiative
Fund (HESIF). Realisation of the project, over the coming years, will require investment of both Philanthropy
and University funds.

The University also embarked on a project to replace its twenty-year old student records system and at the end
of 2019 we’ll conclude an essential investment in the maintenance of our historic and iconic Quadrangle
building.

Conclusion

While the range of challenges facing the University are many and varied, its continued success is assured by
virtue of its committed teams who deliver day in, day out, on its strategic objectives, high teaching and
research standards, and professional services.

Sharon Bailey FCCA, AITI, MSc Mgmt.

Spardnai / Bursar

Date.' ‘3 . QQ' - 10 1@
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Statement on the System of Governance and Internal Control

for the year ended 30 September 2019

1. Scope of Responsibility. On behalf of the University, I acknowledge Uldarés na hOllscoile’s responsibility for
ensuring that an effective system of internal control is maintained and operated. This responsibility takes

account of the requirements of the Code of Governance for Trish Universities 2019.

The Governing Authority (Odarés na hOllscoile) is estab, ished under the University Act, 1997- The functions of
the Governing Authority are set out in section 18 of this Act. The Board is accountable o the Minister for
Education and Skills and HEA and is responsible for ensuring good governance and performs this task by
setting strategic objectives and targets and taking strategic decisions on all key business issucs- The regular day-
to-day management, control and direction of the University are the responsibility of the Chief Officer {the
President) and the University Management Team (UMT). The Chief Officer and UMT must follow the broad
strategic direction set by the Governing Autbority and must ensure that all Govemning Authority members have a
clear understanding of the key activities and decisions related to the University, and of any significant risks
likely to arise. The Chief Officer acts as @ direct liaison between {he Governing Authority and management of

the University.

The Governing Authority of NUI Galway is responsible for, and is satisfied that, the University is substantially
compliant with all statutory obligations applicable to the University that may be set out in legislation governing

the establishment and role of the University and other relevant legislation.

A revised Code of Governance for Irish Universities was issued in September 2019 and is effective from
January 2019. ()daras na hOllscoile has adopted the Code of Governance for Irish Universities (2019) and has

put procedures in place to ensure compliance with the Code.

2. Governing Authority Meetings

There were six meetings of Udaras na hOllscoile during the 2018/19 financial year. A fist of the members forms

part of the record of member attendance set out on pages 47 to 48.

3. Tees and Expenses

No fees are paid to members of {7darés na hOllscoile. The aggregate expenses paid to external members of

Udaras na hOllscoile is €21,761. The expenses paid to members of Udaras na hOllscoile are in accordance with

the guidelines from the Department of Finance.

4. Purpose of the System of Internal Control. The System of Internal Control is designed to manage riskto a

tolerable level rather than to eliminate it. The system can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurances that assets are safeguarded, transactions authorised and properly recorded and that material errors or

irregularities are either prevented or detected in a timely way.

The system of internal control, which accords with guidance issued by the Department of Public Expenditure
and Reform has been in place in the University for the year ended 30 September 2019 and up to date of approval

of the financial statements
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Statement on the System of Governance and Internal Control (cond)

5. Key control procedures. Udaras na hOllsceile has established a strong and robust control environment in the
University through:

- Holding regular Udards meetings where the agenda includes strategic issues such as governance, financial
management and University strategy

- The implementation of the University Strategic Plan 2015 — 2020 (Vision 2020), and the development of its
successor covering 2020 — 2025.

- Clearly defined management responsibilities, authority and accountability, delegation of appropriate functions
and reviewing and approving all key policies

- Approval of annual budgets, cash flow forecasting and capital programme expenditure with formal review of
these at each Governing Authority meeting

- The work of the Audit Committee, which met four times in the financial year to 30" September 2019

- Five internal andits were conducted in 2018/19, with regular meetings between the Audit Committee and the
Internal Audit department to discuss their work programme, the outcomes of their audits and their
recommendations

- The operation of a risk management system with regular review of the risk policy

- Risk Management Group comprising of all members of the University Management team (UMT) and external
members is accountable for risk management at a strategic level. The Risk Advisory Group, which is made up
of managers of the professional support units and colleges and chaired by a member of the UMT report to the
Risk Management Group. In terms of the overall govemance structure, the Risk Management Group is a sub-
committee of Finance/Resource Committee,

- Ongoing review of the Academic and Professional Support Units which are reviewed at the quarterly Risk
Management Group Meetings

- Strategic risk register in place which records the strategic risks of the University. These are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and reviewed at the Risk Management Group

- Robust systems of health and safety, with regular reports to the UMT and Udarés

- Monitoring of compliance with legisiation including University Act 1997 and GDPR

- Internal Control Questionmaires are issued to each Head of School and Unit in the University on an annual basis
and reviewed by the Internal Audit and Risk Management department

- Internal Financial Control Templates are reviewed by the control owners on an annual basis and reviewed by the
Internal Audit and Risk Management department

Review of Statement of Internal Control

The Statement of Internal Control was reviewed by the Audit Committee on the 5 December 2019.

Financial and Budgelary Managem stems

There is a comprehensive annual budgeting system with annual income, budget allocation process, cash flow forecasting
and capital programme budgeting reviewed and approved by Governing Authority at the start of each year, with formal
review at each subsequent Finance/Resource Committee meeting. Policies and procedures are in place in relation to
budgetary and financial matters, with delegated authority levels in place for the approval of purchase orders. There are
regular reviews by Udarés na hOllscoile’s, UMT and the relevant standing committees and a Procurement Plan is in

place.

Procedures for monitoring the effectiveness of the Internal Control Svstem

The following audits per the agreed Internal Audit plan for 2018 and 2019 were completed:

- Review of the Research Accounts office

- Review of Equality and Diversity

- GDPR Review

- Review of Risk Management Arrangements

- Review of Procurement.
Implementation plans to address internal audit recommendations are approved by the Audit Committee. Progress on the
implementation of the actions in each of the Internal Audit Implementation Plans is reviewed anmually and reported to
the Audit Committee and the Finance/Resource Committee.

The Internal Audit Plan for 2018 and 2019 reflected the risks identified in the various University Risk Registers, the
management letter of the Comptroller and Auditor General, guidance from the HEA and general developments and issucs
in relation to Governance. The Internal Audit Plan for 2019 was approved by the Audit Committee in December 2018
with a draft plan for 2020 to be presented at the December 2019 meeting.
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Statement on the System of Governance and Internal Control (con'd)

Capacity to Handle Risk

The University has an Audit Committee (ARC) comprising members of the Governing Authority as well as external
members with a broad range of experience including financial and audit expertise, one of whom is the Chair.

The University has an internal audit function which is adequately resourced and conducts a programme of work agreed
with the Audit Commitiee. The function is supported by an outsourced internal audit provider. The Director of Internal
Audit and Risk Management is responsible for risk.

The Risk Management Group and Risk Advisory Group oversees the risk management policy which sets out the
University’s risk appetite, the risk management processes in place and details the roles and responsibilities of staff in
relation to risk. The policy has been issued to all staff who are expected to work within the University’s risk management
policies, to alert management on emerging risks and control weaknesses and assume responsibility for risks and controls
within their own area of work.

The financial implications of strategic and operational risks have been considered through the formal business risk
assessment process and in the preparation of the Internal Audit Plans. A comprehensive set of Financial Procedures have
been put in place to control the significant financial elements of the University’s business including authorisation limits
for purchasing/expenditure.

Risk and Control Framework

The University has implemented a risk management system which identifies and reports key risks and the management
actions being taken to address and, to the extent possible, to mitigate those risks.

The University’s Risk Management Policy is in compliance with the Code of Governance for Irish Universities 2019. A
risk register is in place for both Schools and Professional Support Units. A strategic risk register is also in place. These
risk registers identify the key risks facing the University and these have been identified, evaluated and ranked according
to their significance. The register is reviewed and updated on a regular basis (formally annually) and presented to the
Risk Management Group. The outcome of these assessments is used to plan and allocate resources to ensure risks are
managed to an acceptable level.

The risk registers detail the controls and actions needed to mitigate risks and responsibility for operation of controls
assigned to specific staff. I confirm that a control environment containing the following elements is in place:

- Procedures for all key strategic and operational processes have been documented

- TFinancial responsibilities have been assigned at management level with corresponding accountability

- There is an appropriate budgeting system with an annual budget which is kept under review by senior management

- There are systems aimed at ensuring the security of the information and communication technology systems

- There are systems in place to safeguard the assets, and

- Control procedures over grant funding to outside agencies ensure adequate control over approval of grants and
monitoring and review of grantees to ensure grant funding has been applied for the purpose intended.

Ongoing Monitoring and Review

Formal procedures have been established for monitoring control processes and control deficiencies are communicated to
those responsible for taking cotrective action and to management and the Governing Authority, where relevant, in a
timely way. I confirm that the following ongoing monitoring systems are in place:

- Key risks and related controls have been identified and processes have been put in place to monitor the operation of
those key controls and report any identified deficiencies

- Reporting arrangements have been established at all levels where responsibility for financial management has been
assigned, and

- There are regular reviews by senior management of periodic and annual performance and financial reports which
indicate performance against budgets/forecasts

Procurement

I confirm that the University has procedures in place to ensure substantial compliance with current procurement rules and
guidelines. While a review of compliance levels in 2018/19 shows scope for improvement, the University is substantially
compliant and continues to invest in its systems and processes so as to eliminate non-compliance in the short term.

7
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Statement on the System of Governance and Internal Control (con’a)

Procurement (con’d)

1 confirm the University is using the services and frameworks of the Office of Government Procurement and of the
Education Procurement Services, where applicable. During the year ended 30 September 2019, tenderable expenditure
amounted to approximately €98 million. Of this, €2.9 million (<3.1% of total expenditure), relating to 63 suppliers, did
not comply with the current procurement legislation in relation to public procurement tendering requirements. Non-
competitive procurement expenditure of €2.78m was identified by the University during the year. In addition €0.2m of
non- competitive procurement expenditure was identified during the audit. The University continues to work towards
full compliance with all relevant guidelines.

Review of Effectiveness

I confirm that the University has procedures in place to monitor the effectiveness of its risk management and control
procedures, including review of the performance of the Governing Authority and its sub-committee. The University’s
monitoring and review of the effectiveness of the system on internal financial control is informed by the work of the
internal and external auditors, the Audit Committee which oversees their work, and the University’s UMT responsible for
the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

Annual Review of the Effectiveness on Internal Control

The University engaged the TPA to carry out a review of its Governing Authority’s operation and structures in Spring
2019. This review led to the establishment of a working group charged with implementing the agreed recommendations
from the IPA’s review.

The annual review of the effectiveness on internal controls for 2018/19 was conducted in November 2019 and was
approved by the Audit Cgmmittee on 5™ December 2019, presented to Finance/Resource Committee on 5% December
2019 and presented to Udaras na hOllscoile 12% December 2019. In undertaking this review, the following was
considered:

- Risk management policies, systems and procedures

- Internal audits conducted in the period. All audits provided substantial assurance and all recommendations are being
implemented

- External audit by KPMG and the Comptrolier and Auditor General

- The work of the Audit Committee and Finance/Resource Committee

- Internal Control Questionnaire

- Internal Financial Control Template

- Annual Chair Assurances received from each of the five standing committees

- Annual reports completed by Health & Safety Department, Quality Assurance, ISS and Procurement.

- Annual report completed by Internal audit and Risk Management.

Internal Control Issues
There were no material losses, frauds or breaches in control in 2018/19. No weaknesses in internal control were
identified in relation to 2018/19 that require disclosure in the financial statements.

Consultancy costs/fees

Consultancy costs are included under the heading ‘Consultancy, Professional, Audit and Legal’ as set out under Note 9
‘Other Operating Expenses’ on page 29 of the Financial Statements. The analysis below includes the cost of external
advice to management and excludes audit fees.

- 2019 2018
Legal 464,611 1,025,789 |
Tax and financial advisory 114,112 52,112
Public relations/marketing - 50,598
Pensions and Human Resources 32,606 83.902
Other* 3,188,394 2,282 469
Total - | 3,799,723 3,494,870 |

* Other includes professional support costs relating to international student recruitment (€1.4m, 2018: €0.7m), Buildings
& Estates (€0.4m, 2018: €0.4m), College of Medicine, Nursing and Health Sciences (€0.5m, 2018: €0.2m), Student
Counselling (€0.2m, 2018: €0.2m) and other miscellaneous consultancy/professional fees.
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Statement on the System of Governance and Internal Control con'd)

True and Fair View

The Governing Authority acknowledged that it is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Report in the format of
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Governing Authority confirms that they consider that the Consolidated Financial
Statements give a true and fair view of the University’s financial performance and its Financial Position as at the balance
sheet date, 30th September 2019.

Legal Costs/Settlements

The code outlines specific financial disclosure requirements, which have been reflected in the financial statements with
the exception of reporting requirements related to logal costs/settlements. The University is working to put measures in
place to ensure that these disclosures will be achieved in the Annual Report for the year ended 30 September 2020.

Value for Money

NUI Galway has to the best of its knowledge and belief followed the guidelines in achieving value for money in public
expenditure as set out in the Department of Public Expenditure and Reform Public Spending Code.

Termination/ Severance payments and agreements

No severance payments have been made without a prior written request for approval from the Department of Education
and Skills. The 1otal cost incurred by the University for termination/ severance payments and agreements is set out under
Note 8¢ on page 28 of the Financial Statements.

Travel and Subsistence

The total cost incurred by the University for travel and subsistence is set ont under Note 9 ‘Other Operating Expenses’ on
page 29 of the Financial Statements.

Hospitality and Catering

The total cost incurred by the University for hospitality and entertainment expenses is included under Note 9 ‘Other
Operating Expenses’ on page 29 of the Financial Statements.

On behalf of the Udaras na hOllscoile (Governing Authority)

Co\\L

Ciardn O hOgartaigh

Chief Officer &-Président

Date: ‘1> H_i' LoLo
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Statement of Responsibilities of Udar4s na hOllscoile

Udaras na hOllscoile is required to comply with the Universities Act, 1997, and to keep in such form as may
be approved of by An t-Udaras um Ard-Oideachas all proper and usual accounts of money received and
expended by it.

Udarés na hOlIscoile is also responsible for preparing the President’s Report and the financial statements for
each financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the University and the University
group and the surplus or deficit of the University group for the period. Udaras na hOllscoile is also responsible
for preparing the HEA Funding Statement in accordance with the most recent Harmonisation of Accounts
Agreement.

In preparing those financial statements, Udarés na hOllscoile is required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e disclose and explain any material departures from applicable accounting standards; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
University will continue in operation.

Udars na hOllscoile is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the University and which enable it to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Universities Act, 1997, the Statement of Recommended Practice on Accounting
for Further and Higher Education Institutions and are prepared in accordance with FRS102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

Udarés na hOllscoile is responsible for ensuring that the business of the University is conducted in a proper

and regular manner and for safeguarding all assets under its operational control and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other jrregularities.

On behalf of Udards na hOliscoile
Ciardn O hOgartai

Chief Officer & President

Date: (N \a\l R, R
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Ard Rea .
Comptroller and Auditor General

Report for presentation to the Houses of the Oireachtas

Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh

Opinion on the financial statements

I have audited the financial statements of Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh for the year ended
30 September 2019 as required under the provisions of the Universities Act 1997. The
financial statements comprise

e the consolidated and University statement of comprehensive income and retained
reserves

. the consolidated and University statement of financial position
s the consolidated statement of cash flows and
. the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities
and financial position of the University and of the University group at 30 September 2019
and of the income and expenditure of the University and the University group for the year
then ended in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 — The Financial
Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland.

Emphasis of matter — deferred pension funding asset

Without qualifying my opinion on the financial statements, | draw attention to Note 24
Retirement Benefits and to the recognition as at 30 September 2019 of an asset of €1,220
million in respect of deferred pension funding.

The recognition of a deferred pension funding asset in respect of the Joint Pension
Scheme (€735 million) and the Single Public Service Pension Scheme (€23 million)
reflects statutory provisions relating to the funding of those schemes.

The recognition of an asset of €462 million in respect of the Model Pension Scheme and
pension supplementation anticipates that funding will be provided by the State to meet
pension liabilities as they fall due. Inherent in this accounting treatment is an assumption
that any income generated by the University will in the first instance be applied towards
current expenses and that State funding will meet any shortfall in resources required to
meet future pension liabilities.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit of the financial statements in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as promulgated by the International Organisation of
Supreme Audit Institutions. My responsibilities under those standards are described in
the appendix to this report. | am independent of the University and have fulfilled my ather
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the standards.

In conducting my audit, | seek to rely on evidence from an audit of the financial statements
by independent auditors engaged by the University

! believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.



Report of the C&AG (continued)

Report on information other than the financial statements, and on
other matters

The University has presented certain other information together with the financial
statements. This comprises the Bursar's report, the statement on the system of
governance and internal control, a statement of responsibilities of Udaras na hOllscoile, a
reconciliation between the financial statements and a university funding statement for
2018/2018 prepared for the Higher Education Authority, a statement of corporate social
responsibility, an attendance list for Udaras na hOliscoile meetings in 2018/19, audited
consolidated financial statements for Galway University Foundation Company Limited by
Guarantee for the year ended 30 June 2019 and financial statements of the University for
the year ended 30 September 2019 prepared for the Higher Education Authority.

My responsibilities to report in relation to such information, and on certain other matters
upon which | report by exception, are described in the appendix to this report.

Procurement non-compliance

The statement on governance and internal control discloses that in 2018/2019 the
University incurred significant expenditure on goods and services the procurement of
which was not compliant with the relevant procedures.

/S soiry M G»HL\.

Seamus McCarthy
Comptroller and Auditor General

15 July 2020



Appendix to the report

Responsibilities of members of Udaras na hOllscoile

The members are responsible for

*  the preparation of financial statements in the form
prescribed under the Universities Act 1997

¢ ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair
view in accordance with FR$102

¢ ensuring the regularity of transactions

»  assessing whether the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate, and

e such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibilities of the Comptroller and Auditor
General

| am required under the Universities Act 1997 to audit the
financial statements of the University and to report thereon to the
Houses of the Oireachtas.

My objective in carrying out the audit is to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the I1SAs, | exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. In doing so,

. | identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements whether due to fraud or error;
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» | obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal controls.

. I evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures.

. | conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, on whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt cn the University’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty

exists, | am required to draw attention in my report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of my report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the University to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. i evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair '
presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that 1 identify during my audit.

Information other than the financial statements

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information presented with those statements, and | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, | am
required under the ISAs to read the other information presented
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or with
knowledge obtained during the audit, or if it otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed,
| conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report that fact.

Reporting on other matters

My audit is conducted by reference to the special considerations
which attach to badies in receipt of substantial funding from the
State in relation to their management and operation. | report if |
identify material matters relating to the manner in which public
business has been conducted.

| seek to obtain evidence about the regularity of financial
transactions in the course of audit. | report if | identify any
material instance where public money has not been applied for
the purposes intended or where transactions did not conform to
the authorities governing them. | also report by exception if, in
my opinion,

« | have not received all the information and explanations |

required for my audit, or

«  the accounting records were not sufficient to permit the
financial statements to be readily and properly audited, or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records.
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Consolidated and Univérsity Statement aof
Comprehensive Income and Retained
Reserves

for the year ended 30 September

Income:

State grants

Academic fees

Research grants and contracts

Other income

Income from other financial assets

Other interest receivable and similar income
Amortisation of deferred capital grants

Net deferred Government funding for pensions 24

Total income

Expenditure:

Staff costs

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Total expenditure

Surplus for the year before taxation
Taxation

Surplus for the year

Actuarial loss in respect of pension schemes
Movement on pension receivable

Total comprehensive income

Represented by:
Restricted comprehensive loss
Unrestricted comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Opening reserves at 1 October

Total closing reserves at 30 September

11/12
24

10

2
24

Consolidated  University Consolidated  University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
(as restated) (as restated)
52,666 52,666 45,000 45,000
120,059 120,059 113,741 113,741
70,371 70,371 76,559 76,559
15,478 11,821 11,842 8,077
942 942 15 15
32 32 117 117
8,266 8,266 5,940 5,940
49,163 49,163 45,590 45,590
316,977 313,320 298,804 295,039
196,913 194,683 179,452 177,175
77,247 76,236 75,541 74,852
16,851 16,298 13,759 13,292
22,941 22,941 22,344 22,344
313,952 310,158 291,096 287,663
3,025 3,162 7,708 7,376
45) - (214) -
2,980 3,162 7,494 71,376
{124,424)  (124,424) (28,572) (28,572)
124,424 124,424 28,572 28,572
2,980 3,162 7,494 7,376
(156) (156) (384) (384)
3.136 3,318 7,878 7,760
2,980 3,162 7,494 7,376
257,999 255,388 250,505 248,012
260,979 258,550 257,999 255,388

The surplus for the year arose solely from continuing operations. The financial statemenis on pages 14 to 43 were
approved by Udarés na hOllscoile on 25 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Ciarén O hOgarksigh
Chief Officer & President

"1l QJ&/{-J (

Pol O Dochartaigh g

Registrar

ﬂ/._.-
V2
7
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Consolidated and University Statement Of
Financial Position as at 30 September

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Heritage assets
Financial assets

Current assets

Inventory

Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other investments

Creditors: amounts falting due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current Habilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one
year

Provisions for liabilities

Pension receivable
Pension liability

Total net assets

Represented by:

Income and expenditure un-restricted reserve
Income and expenditure restricted reserve

Total reserves

Notes

11
12
13

14
15

16

17

18

24
24

(1,220,544) (1,220,544)

Consolidated University Cansolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
379,063 377,517 374,676 373,339
8,441 8,441 8,590 8,590
5,001 5,001 16,848 16,848
392,505 390,959 400,114 398,777
105 90 102 90
44.136 43,741 43,455 42,177
126,549 120,462 83,638 76,816
28,416 28,416 36,188 36,188
199,206 192,709 163,383 155,271
{130,684) (125,070) (124.357) (118,019)
68,522 67,639 38,526 37,252
461,027 458,598 438,640 436,029
(200,048) (200,048) (180,641) (180,641)
1,220,544 1,220,544 1,050,275 1,050,275

(1,050,275)  (1,050,275)

260,979 258,550 257,999 255,388
259,132 256,703 255,996 253,385

1,847 1,847 2,003 2,003
260,979 258,550 257,999 255,388

The financial statements on pages 14 10 43 were approved by Udarés na hOllscoile on 25 June 2020 and were signed on

i% " \
Ciarén O hOga 1
Chief Officer & Jrejident

2 Folor]

P61 O Dochartaigh
Registrar

.
Y
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ending 30 September

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus for the year

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Amortisation of deferred capital grants
Income from other financial assets

Other interest receivable and similar income

Operating cashflow before movement in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventory

Increase in receivables

Increase in payables (excluding capital grants)
Other movements

Taxation

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Taxation (paid)lreceived

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments made t0 acquire fixed assets
Capital grant receipts

Interest income

Investment income
Movement in investments

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans

Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash eq jvalents at the end of the year

Consolidated Consolidated

——

2019 2018

€000s €000s

(as restated)

2,980 7,494

16,851 13,759

6 -

(8,266) (5,940)

(942) (15)

(32 (117N
S ~—

10,597 15,181
———— =

3 4

(8,931 (8,573)

1,772 2,631

45 214

3,480 9,457

sy 1

_ -

(20,054) (29,163)

18,043 17,835

32 117

942 15

19,619 32,493

18,582 21,297

21,000 -
N S
42,911 30,755

83,638 52,383

126,549 83,638

Oliscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh nnual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 September 2019

1. Accounting Policies

The basis of significant accounting policies adopted by Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh are set out below. Except for the
change in recognition for certain research donations which were previously taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, these policies have all been applied consistently throughout the year and for the preceding year. The impact of
this change in accounting policy is a credit of €0.7m to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

a. General Information

Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh commenced activities in 1849 as Queen's College, Galway. The Irish Universities Act
(1908) made this college a constituent college of the new National University of Ireland, and under a new charter the
name of the university changed to University College, Galway. It was given special statutory responsibility under the
University College, Galway Act (1929) in respect of the use of the Irish language as the working language of the
college. It retained the title of University College, Galway until the Universities Act (1997) changed it to the National
University of Ireland, Galway (Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh). Its principal place of business is University Road,
Galway.,

b. Oliscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh is a Public Benefit Entity (PBE)

c. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh for the year ended 30 September 2019 have been prepared in
accordance with FRS 102, the financial reporting standard applicable in the UK and Ireland issued by the Financial
Reporting Council and the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015,
which has been voluntarily adopted by the university.

d. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The presentation currency of these
financial statements is the euro (€). All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand (€000s).

¢. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the University and its subsidiary undertakings
made up to 30 September 2019. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the holding undertaking. The results of
subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Control is established when the University has the power to govern the operating and financial policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the group takes into consideration potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable.

An associate is an entity in which the group has significant influence, but not control, over the operating and financial
policies of the entity. Significance influence is presumed to exists when the investors holds between 20% and 50% of the
equity voting rights.

Investments in associates are shown in the University’s own Statement of Financial Position at cost less provisions for
impairments in value.

In accordance with FRS102, the activities of the Students Union have not been consolidated because the University does
not exert control or dominant influence over its activities or policy decisions. The financial statements of Galway
University Foundation Limited are also excluded from consolidation on the same basis.
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1. Accounting Policies (continued)

f. Recognition of income

Government sourced recurrent/revenue grants (including research grants) are recognised in income over the periods in
which the university recognises the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a
government grant is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due
within one year and due after more than one year, as appropriate.

Non-government sourced recurrent/revenue grants (including research grants) are recognised in income when the
university is entitled to the income and performance-related conditions (if any) have been met. Income received in
advance of performance-related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Statement
of Financial Position and released to income as the conditions are met.

Government sourced non-recurrent/non-revenue grants received (or, in the case of certain capital grants, receivable) from
the Higher Education Authority or other government bodies in respect of the acquisition or construction of fixed assets
are treated as deferred capital grants and amortised in line with depreciation over the life of the related assets.

Non-government sourced non-recurrent/non-revenue grants are accounted for as Donations & Endowments as set out in g
below.

Fee income is credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period in which the students are
studying. Bursaries and scholarships are accounted for as gross expenditure and not deducted from income.

Rental income is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income once related services are deemed to have been
delivered to customers when the entity has met its obligations under contract. Services invoiced and paid in advance are
deferred and are included in creditors in the Statement of Financial Position.

Investment income is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a receivable basis.

Funds that the university receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are excluded from the
income and expenditure of the university where the university is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

Other recurrent income from the sale of services is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the services
are supplied to external customers or the terms of the contract have been satisfied.

g. Donations and Endowments

All donations and endowments represent non-exchange transactions. Non-exchange transactions include grants from
private and charitable individuals or organisations including research grants.

Non-exchange transaction income is recognised as follows;

(i) Transactions that do not impose specified future performance-related conditions on the University are
recognised in income when the resources are received or receivable.

(i) Transactions that impose specified future performance-related conditions on the University are recognised in
income only when the performance-related conditions are met.

A performance-related condition is defined as one that requires the performance of a particular level of service of units or
output to be delivered, with payment of, or entitlement to, the resources conditional on that performance.

18



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

h. Interest receivable and interest payable
Interest receivable and similar income include interest receivable on funds invested.

Interest payable and similar expenses include interest payable and net foreign exchange gains or losses that are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset.

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as it accrues, using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign cuirency gains and losses are reported on a net basis (see point i hereunder).

i. Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Mounetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into euro at year end rates.
The resulting exchange differences are dealt with in the determination of income and expenditure for the financial year.

j. Property, plant & equipment
Land and buildings

Freehold land is not depreciated. Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the
University — normally fifty years., Leaschold buildings are included in the Statement of Financial Position at cost and
depreciated over the term of the lease,

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants they are capitalised and depreciated as above. Any
related government grants are recognised as deferred income within creditors and are released to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the
depreciation policy.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable.

Bauildings under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other direct costs
incurred to the financial year end. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Equipment

Equipment costing less than €10,000 per individual item is written off to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
year of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised at cost. Capitalised equipment is depreciated over its useful
economic life as follows:

Computer equipment 3 years
Other equipment 3 vears

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific government grants, it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance

with the above policy, with any related grant being recognised as deferred income within creditors and released to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.
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1. Accounting Policies (continued)

k. Heritage assets

The University has acquired a number of assets of unqualified historical and cultural importance to the State. These
assets include archives relating to literature and other arts, such as drama, as well as period houses, artworks and other
paintings and artefacts.

Period houses, such as the Quadrangle, are part of the working infrastructure of the University Campus and, as such, are
capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position at original cost. These are depreciated over fifty years.

Archives purchased for the benefit of the University’s academic mission are also capitalised in the Statement of Financial
Position at original cost and not depreciated.

Given the historical and cultural importance of these assets, it is University policy to have procedures around their
acquisition, preservation, management and disposal (using the various committees and accounting system) to separately
identify and manage these important assets.

l. Operating leases

Payments (excluding costs for services and insurance) made under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

m. Financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment.

Quoted investments are stated at market value based on prices ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date. Unit
trusts are stated at net asset value quoted by the investment managers at the year-end date. Investments which are held
in managed funds and unit linked funds are stated at bid prices at the Statement of Financial Position date.

n. Inventory

Inventory consists mainly of stationery, fuel and laboratory/cleaning consumables, and is recognised in the financial
statements at the lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value (NRV). Cost is calculated on a first-in-first-out (FIFQ) basis
and includes all purchase costs. NRYV is the selling price (actual or estimated) less all necessary completion costs.

o. Trade and other debtors/creditors

Trade and other debtors/creditors are recognised initially at transaction price. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost (using the effective interest rate method) less any impairment losses in the case of trade
debtors,

p. Interest-bearing borrowings classified as basic financial instruments

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recogmition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

q. Taxation

As an exempt charity, the University is not liable for Corporation Tax or Income Tax on any of its charitable activities. Tt
is registered for Value Added Tax, but since the supply of education is an exempt activity on which no output tax is
charged it is unable to recover input tax on the majority of its purchases.

Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs, both revemue and capital. The University does carry
out some commercial activity — most notably in the research area, VAT is charged on income from this activity where
appropriate. Trading activities undertaken by the University are administered through its subsidiary companies, which as
commercial organisations are liable to Corporation Tax.
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1. Aeccounting Policies (continued)

r. Deferred taxation

In subsidiary companies, which do not hold a charitable status, deferred taxation is provided on ail timing differences that
have originated but not reversed at the Statement of Financial Position reporting date where transactions or events that
result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the firture have occurred at the reporting
date.

Timing differences are temporary differences between profits as computed for taxation purposes and profits as stated in
the financial statements that arise because certain items of income and expenditure in the financial statements are dealt
with in different periods for the purposes of taxation.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the years in which the timing differences are
expected to be reversed, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. Deferred tax is not discounted.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and, therefore, recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the fature
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

s. Employee Benefits
Short-term Benefits

Short term benefits such as wages and holiday pay are recognised as an expense in the year in which the employee
renders service. Any unused benefits are accrued at year-end and included in the Creditors figure in the Statement of
Financial Position,

Retirement Benefits
The University operates the following defined-benefit pension schemes:

* Joint Pension Scheme (JPS) — this is a ‘Pay As You Go’ (PAYG) scheme providing pension benefits at
retirement on a defined benefit basis, covering entrants up to 31 December 2004.

® Model Pension Schemes (MPS) — this is a ‘Pay As You Go’ (PAYG) scheme providing pension benefits at
retirement on a defined benefit basis, covering entrants from 1 January 2005.

¢ The Single Public Service Pension Scheme (“Single Scheme™), — this multi-employer scheme commenced, with
effect from 1 January 2013. From the commencement date onward new public servants will be members of the
Single Scheme, which will provide CPI-linked defined-benefit pensions based on career-average pay.

Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

In relation fo the above schemes, the actuarially-assessed present value of the various schemes’ liabilities (calculated
using the projected unit credit method) is disclosed as a liability in the Statcment of Financial Position.

Current service costs: These are the costs of additional benefits that scheme members accrue during the year, based on
projected pensionable salaries at retirement or earlier cessation of employment. The expense for the year is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest cost: This is interest on the defined benefit obligation, which is the total present value of the members’ attributed
benefits for valuation purposes at the year-end. The expense for the year is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Actuarial gains or losses: These relate to changes in the liabilities due to changes in assumptions or because actual
experience during the year was different to that assumed.

The University considers that its pension liabilities are guaranteed by the State. As a consequence, a pension receivable
asset, corresponding to the net actuarially-computed liability for pensions, is recognised on the Statement of Financial
Position.

Movements on this pension receivable are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in order to miror the
underlying movement on the pension liability.
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1. Accounting Policies (continued)

s. Employee Benefits (continued) / Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)
This asset is recognised on foot of:

a) guarantees enshrined in the Financial Measures (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 2009 in respect of JP'S
pension benefits at retirement;

b) the “PAYG” basis of the MPS. Udarés na hOllscoile is of the opinion that the discussions between the sector,
the HEA and Govemment Departments represented assurances that the State will fund any cash-flow
deficiencies arising from pension payment obligations; and

¢) guarantees enshrined in the Public Service Pensions (Single Scheme and Other Provisions) Act 2012,
Personal Retirement Savings Accounts (PRSA) pension facility

A PRSA pension facility is also available for staff not eligible for enrolment in the defined-benefits schemes. It is
administered by a third party insurance company.

t. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafis.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value. A deposit qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3 months or less
from the date of acquisition. Other deposits with longer maturities are classified as financial assets,

u. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the reporting date and the amounts reported for income and
expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates. The following judgements have had the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Non-Traded Financial Assets

The value of financial assets that are not traded in active markets is determined by using valuation techniques. The
University exercises judgment in selecting a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on
observable data and conditions existing at each reporting date.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are gronped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Depreciation and Residual Values
The University has reviewed the asset lives and associated residual values of all fixed asset classes and have concluded
that asset lives and residual values are appropriate.

Retirement Benefit Obligation and related asset

The assumptions underlying the actuarial valuations for which the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
determined (including discount rates, rates of increase in future compensation levels, mortality rates and healthcare cost
trend rates) and updated annually based on current economic conditions, and for any relevant changes to the terms and
conditions of the pension and post-retirement plans.
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L. Accounting Policies (continued)

u. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

The assumptions can be affected by:
(D  the discount rate, changes in the rate of return on high-quality corporate bonds
(i) future compensation levels, future labour market conditions
(iii) health care cost trend rates, the rate of medical cost inflation in the relevant regions.

Although the legislation relates specifically to the Joint Pension Scheme and The Single Public Service Pension
Scheme, the University belicves that the discussions between the University sector, HEA and Government
Departments represent assurances that the State will meet all future pension liabilities of defined benefit schemes
(i.e. JPS and MPS, including supplementation, in the University’s case) on a “Pay As You Go” basis for all
categories of staff,

Accordingly, the University has recognised a matching pension receivable in the Statement of Financial Position at
an amount equivalent to the full pension liability for these defined benefit schemes for each reported period.

Recaverability of Debtors

The provision for bad debt is calculated based on management’s expectation on the recoverability of debt. In
calculating the provision for bad debt the following factors arc considered: age of the debt, the default history and
current situation of the debtor and current market conditions,

Employee Benefits
The accrual for holidays earned but not taken is based on estimates of total holiday leave less leave taken.

v. Reserves

Reserves are classified as restricted or varestricted. Restricted reserves include balances through which the donor or
funder has designated a specific purpose and therefore the University is restricted in the use of these funds.
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2. State grants
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Consolidated  University Consolidated  University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
State grants allocated for recurrent purposes 52,666 52,666 45,000 45,000
Opening Grant Closing Amount
deferred/(due) (deferred)/due taken
1 October 2018 received 30 September  to income
2019
Grantor Government funding €000s €000s €000s €000s
Department
Higher Education Dept of Education and 11,351 49,045 (8,684) 51,712
Authority Skills
An Roinn Cultiir, Department of Culture, (746) 746 900 900
Oidhreachta agus Heritage and the
Gaeltachta Gaeltacht
Department of Department of - 54 - 54
Education and Skills Education and Skills
10,605 49,845 (7,784) 52,666
3. Academic fees
Consolidated University Consolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
Academic fee income 119,555 119,555 113,438 113,438
Miscellaneous fee income 504 504 303 303
120,059 120,059 113,741 113,741
Opening Grant Closing Amount
deferred/(due) (deferred)/due taken
1 October 2018 received 30 September 2019 to income
(restated)
Grantor Government funding €000s €000s €000s €000s
Department
Higher Dept of Education and
Education Skills 40 36,088 (33) 36,095
Authority
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4. Research grants and contracts

State and Semi-State
European Union
Industry and commerce
Other

Total research grants and contract income

Grantor/Government funding Depariment

SF¥L/Dept of Jobs, Enterprise and Innovation

HEA PRTLVDept of Jobs, Enterprise and
Innovation

Health Research Board/Department of Health

IRC/Dept of Education and Skills

Enterprise Ireland/Dep! of Jobs, Enterprise and
Innovation

Environmental Protection Agency/Dept of
Communications, Climate Action and Environment
Dept of Agriculture and Food/Depr of Agriculsure,
Food and the Marine

Marine Institute/Dept of Agriculture, Food and the
Marine

Other Irish Government/State agencies and various

Departments

Total Exchequer research grants

Total non-Exchequer research grants

Total research grants and contract income

Annual Report and Consolidated Financlal Statements 2019

Consolidated University Consolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
50,866 50,866 52,788 52,788
12,590 12,590 13,064 13,064
5,966 5,966 5,589 5,589
949 949 5,118 5,118
70,3711 70,371 76,559 76,559
Opening Closing Amount
deferred/(due) Grant (deferred)/due taken
1 October received 30 September to income
2018 2019
€000s €000s €000s €000s
23,799 1,362 (243) 24,918
(518) 13,327 (12,809) -
(607) 7,003 263 6,659
1,576 6,064 (2,540) 5,100
(438) 6,523 (503) 5,582
(1,297) 1,692 689 1,084
(1,343) 1,117 1,158 932
(969) 891 777 699
475) 6,019 348 5,892
19,728 43,998 (12,860) 50,866
13,837 15,027 (9.359) 19,505
33,565 59,025 (22,219) 70,371
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5. Other income

Other rental and licence income
Funded post income

Conferences and events

Student accommodation

Other income

Pension Scheme administration costs
Patent and IP-related income

Other subsidiaries income

HSE Service Learning Agreement

Grantor/Government funding
Department

HSE/Department of Health
Tisla/Department of Health
HEA/Dept of Education and Skills

6. Income from other financial assets

Other income from financial assets

Net gain on disposal of financial assets

Consolidated University Consolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
(as restated) (as restated)
1,422 6,952 1,545 3,853
1,954 2,148 1,184 1,184
1,084 - 824 -
8,339 - 5,213 -
1,442 1,937 2,138 2,698
552 552 143 143
1 1 1 1
453 - 596 -
231 231 198 198
15,478 11,821 11,842 8,077
Opening Closing Amount
deferred/(due) Grant (deferred)/due taken
1 October received 39 September to income
2018 2019
€000s €000s €000s €000s
- 1,333 - 1,333
- 75 - 75
- 223 - 223
- 1,631 - 1,631
Consolidated University Consolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
(restated) (restated)
10 10 15 15
932 932 - -
942 942 15 15
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7.  Other interest receivable and similar income

Consolidated University  Consolidated University

2019 2019 2018 2018

€000s €000s €000s €000s

Interest income on bank deposits 32 32 117 117

8. Staff costs

The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the University and its
subsidiary undertakings during the period, expressed as full-time equivalents was:

Consolidated University Consolidated University

2019 2019 2018 2018

Number Number Number Number

Teaching and research 1,424 1,424 1,380 1,380
Technical 103 103 103 103
Central administration and services 749 749 736 736
Other 44 - 55 -
2.320 2,276 2,274 2,219

Consolidated University Consolidated University

2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
Salaries and wages 145976 144,038 132,157 130,192
Social welfare costs 12,890 12,703 11,854 11,667
Contributions to defined benefit plans 11,720 11,720 12,070 12,070
Contributions to defined contribution plans 105 . 125 .
170,691 168,461 156,206 153,929

Impact of accounting requirements relating to
defined-benefit pensions 26,222 26,222 23,246 23,246
Total staff costs 196,913 194,683 179452 177,175
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8. Staff costs (continued)

(@) Emplopee benefits breakdown
The table below provides detail of the range of total employee benefits for all employees earning €60,000 or more:

Range of total employee

benefits

€60,000 - €69,999

€70,000 - €79,999

€80,000 - €389,999

€90,000 - €99,999

€100,000 - €109,999
€110,000 - €119,999
€120,000 - €129,999
€130,000 - €139,959
€140,000 - €149,999
€150,000 - €159,999
€160,000 - €169,999
€170,000 - €179,999
€180,000 - €189,999
€190,000 - €199,999
€200,000 - €209,999
€210,000 - €219,999
€220,000 - €229,999
€240,000 - €249,999
€250,000 - €259,999

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

(b)) Key Management Personnel - Compensation

Consolidated University Consolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
No. of No. of No. of No. of
employees employees employees employees
120 119 156 154
153 151 107 107
287 287 240 239
68 67 86 85
22 21 13 11
4 4 11 11
26 26 70 70
71 70 16 16
12 12 37 36
38 38 1 1
1 1 - -
- - 1 1
3 3 2 2
1 1 1 1
- - 2 2
2 2
1 1 1 1
809 803 744 737
Key management personnel ate those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the University, directly or indirectly. In line with University Sector practice, key management personnel

are the members of the University's Management Team {(UMT).

Total compensation (i.e. remuneration plus employer PRSI and employer pension contributions) paid to key management
personnel in 2019 amounted to €2.33m (20J8: €2.35m). All key management personnel are members of one of the three
defined-benefit pension schemes outlined in Note 1s and their entitlements in that regard do not extend beyond the terms

of those schemes.

In total, 18 employees (2018:16) are included in the compensation of key management personnel disclosed above,

The President’s salary in the year ending 30 September 2019 was €19 1,827 (2018: €185,554).

(c) Other

Salaries include an amount of €1.187m for DES and DPER approved allowances (2018: €1.049m) and overtime €0.238m

(2018: €0.222m).

Termination/Severance payments (including statutory redundancy) amounted to €0.476m (2018: €0.274m).
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9. Other Operating expenses

Bank fees and charges

Bank interest

Non-pay recurrent costs for research projects
Building maintenance, repairs and renewals
Consultancy, professional, audit and legal
Other

Light and heat

IT consumables, maintenance, peripherals and software
Scholarships/fellowships and prizes

Travel and subsistence

Hospitality and catering

Cleaning and waste disposal
Non-capitalised equipment

Books, periodicals and journals

NUI and student levies

Other services purchased

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Insurance

Subsidiaries miscellaneous costs

Marketing and communications
Consumables (laboratories, etc.)

Training and other courses

Rent and rates

Security contract work

Subscriptions and membership fees
Provision for bad debts

Miscellaneous grants awarded

Postage

Telephone

Other operating expenses include:
Auditors' remuneration, including outlay and VAT

- External andit
- C&AG aundit

10. Taxation

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

Consolidated  University Consolidated Usiversity
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
(as restated) (as restated)

166 163 157 128
830 778 37 37
26,958 27,270 27,056 27,253
6,926 6,425 6,683 6,334
4,039 3,950 3,780 3,683
2,315 2,621 4,249 4,315
3,804 3,698 3,662 3,609
3,498 3,376 3,295 3,160
3,125 3,125 3,088 3,088
2,201 2,202 2,145 2,141
1,040 1,040 1,020 1,020
2,381 2,127 1,789 1,789
2,117 2,171 1,613 1,601
2,105 2,105 1,841 1,841
1,873 1,973 1,686 2,371
1,714 2,297 1,951 2,186
1,443 1,424 1,674 1,660
1,182 1,092 905 839
963 - 945 -
1,068 1,017 1,122 1,086
972 970 937 937
1,231 1,547 891 922
881 828 929 902
818 621 767 644
814 812 803 802
728 728 514 514
1,157 1,157 1,232 1,232
383 383 407 407
355 336 363 351
77,247 76,236 75,541 74,852
128 92 108 91
33 33 33 33

The majority of the University’s activities are not liable to corporation taxation. The corporation taxation charge in
the year in respect of trading activities administered through subsidiary companies amounted to €45,000 (2018:

€214,000).

Deferred taxation in the period amounted to €nil (2078: €nil).

29



(113

9L9°vLE 196 L6838 868°29¢

£90°6LE 9%°S 862°S1 £0£°8S€

0SL°1LT - 16T°L¥1 6t Tl

(19) - (19) -

T0L°91 - 91 0Fs o1

660°6ST - 081°I¥1 616°€11T

£18°059 9% 686°791 T9L°T8Y

- (s80°1) (1159 1994

(L9) - (L9 -

$60°12 986°¢ 6L0°T1 0sY's

SLL6T9 196°C LEO'OST LLL'9LY

50002 80003 $0002 50002

[La LY wonONYSUD yuowdinby sSurppmg
10 35anod pue puey
Ul S)ossy

6T0C SIUSLIBIEIS [EDUBULY PAJEP]|OSUC) PUE Joday [enuuy

(46+93 -8107) 173 S1 Tesk o W pastfeydeo §1505 SWMOLIOQ Jo Sriyea Sy

8107 1equimdag o¢ 1V

610¢ 3equsidag of 1y

aN[eBA Y00 JaN]

6102 1quaydag (¢ 1y

Jeok w spesodsi(q
Teof 10§ o3xey)

810T 1=2qo1Q 11V
uonewatdaq

6107 Jaquisidag € IV

UOTIONISUOD J¢ 35IN0D Ul S}ASSE IO SI9JSUBLY
Jeo uy spesodsicy

Jeak W SUOHIPPY

B10T 12qORQ 1 1V

80D

dN0¥D

yuswdmba pue yuepd ‘Aredoag -1y

Yuijies "uuealzy eu 10350



[ £

6EE°CLE 196°C 0TsL 868°79¢
L1S°LLE 79%°S TSLET £0€°86E
$Z9°L9T - SOT°EH 65V VT
6¥1°91 - 609°S ovs o1
SLY1ST - 9SS LET 616°ETT
v'st9 79¥°¢ L1698 9L°T8Y
- (c80°1) 0€s €56
LTE0T 986°¢ TIETI 0Eb'S
PI8479 1967 9LO'SHT LLL'9LY
50003 $0003 50003 80003
1e10], uondnIIsuod mwdmby S3uiping
Jo ds.amod pus pue}
uJ §)I8SY

6T0Z SIUDWDIE)S [EDUBUl] PAIEPOSUOT PUE o0y [enuuy

(16793 :8T07) TU3 S1 Jeak oy Ut pasieiden §1500 FUMOLIO] JO SnfeA SY,

810T Jaquaydag g IV

610T 1oquadas 0g 17

angeA Y0oq 19N

610z Jaqudag 0 1V

Jesd v spesodsiq
IeaA 10§ 981D

8107 19Q000 [ ¥V
uonenaadag

6107 2qudag 0¢ TV

UOONIJSUCD JO DSINOD U S}A8SE TONY SIJSULRI],
JeoA& ut spesodsiq

Teak UT STORIPPY

8107 18O 13V

50D

ALISHAAINA

(p,u0d) juowdinba pue yueyd ‘Aaodoag 1y

Huijjjien ‘uuealijy eu |103s]|0



(43

959'p1 9591 959°'p1 SPO'P1 S9'p1
L9€°T L9€T L9E'T LIET L9ET
682°C1 682°C1 687°Z1 8LTT1 8LT°T1
- - 11 - 869
68T°C1 682°C1 8L27°T1 8LT'T1 08511
50003 50003 50003 50009 50003
6102 8107 L10Z 910T S10Z

squeydag O 18 [1I0L

sjorjape pue s3uriimed ISYI0 JO UOTIENTEA
Jaquiadag Qg 18 180D

SUONIppY

124010 11V

150D

suondesuey) Jasse afe)LIay Jo Areununs fepueuy Jead AL ‘qz1

SINJEA PUR SISSUONONY WY JulJ S214A0 M Aq Uonen]eA 0] (g B U WLOE 79 18 panjea alam ‘(Lorod Sununoooe
8, ASICATO() O HLM OULPIOIOE UE) UOINSOJ [RISUBUTL] JO JUOWS)EIS 913 Ul pasieirdes 10u pue ‘pannboe asimIagjo 1o ‘peseyomd orom jer) sjoejelIe put sSuyured PO

065'8 Y741 L9TE 10Z's
'8 741 L9T'E 750's
818°E - - 8P8°'C

6¥1 - - 6+1

669°C - . 669°€
68721 741 L97°€ 006'8
682°C1 44 L9T'¢ 006°8
50003 80003 50003 50003
B30l sHjaom SOAIYIAY mwﬂm—u::ﬂ

uv

8107 13quidydag O IN[EA Y00q JIN
6107 aquiaydag o Injea Jooq BN

6102 Joquiandag 0€ 1V
Jeoh 10y a8req)

8107 1990120 1 WV
uoneIdaq

6107 oquusydag o¢ W
SUONIPPY

810T 120100 13V
350D

*$95IN050F UMO S AJSIOATU() OI} AQ PepuUny Uaaq SABT S}osse a3eLIay o) Jo AJUo[ew ST, *POLIRIGO T3] ALY S}SO0 YOTM JOJ §198se aFejLio 9SOl SJBISNI|I MOJaq S2[qel oYL

6T0Z SIUSWIDIES [EPUCU]] PIIEPI[OSUD) pUe poday [enuuy

posyreyides syosse sSe)LdH

UIIfjies "uueas[3y eu jo3s]jo



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh

13. Financial assets

Cost

At start of year

Recategorisation to current assets
Other net movements in year

At year-end

The movement in the year in relation to shares

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

Shares in group Other investments
undertakings other than loans Total
€000s €000s €000s
1 16,847 16,848
- (12,325) (12,325)
- 478 478
1 5,000 5,001

in group undertakings related to the alignment of the asset value with the

university’s share of the revenue reserves of the undertaking. Other investments principally consist of portfolios of
government bonds and equities managed by third-party investment managers. Recategorisation to current assets arises for
investment amounts at year end that can be converted to cash within ninety days.

The University held a direct interest in the following subsidiary and associate undertakings:

Subsidiary undertakings
Tionél Teo.
UCG Research Applications Ltd.
Maoin Champais Teo,

Atalia Student Residences Limited

College Campus Radio Ltd,

CCG. Aonad Slainte do Mhicleinn Teo.

Associated undertakings
Bimini Ltd.

Maoin Champais Teoranta leases build
both the current and previous years. T

he re

Principal activity

Previously conferences, now dormant

Holding company

Leasing

Operation of student residences
Radio programming
University health unit

1P rights

Interest %

100%
100%
100%
100%

70%
100%

28%

ings to and from the university. Related lease income and expenses was €1.3m in
gistered office and place of work for each of the subsidiary and associated

undertakings is Oliscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh. The University also holds an interest (through its Technology Transfer

Office) in a number of companies, as outl

Other investments

Theta Chemicals Ltd.

Analyse IQ Ltd.

Qpercom Lid.

Peracton Ltd.

MDG Web Ltd.

Orbsen Therapeutics Lid,
Slainte Beoga Teoranta

NVP Energy Ltd.

Loci Therapeutics Limited
Bioprobe Therapeutics Limited
Sedicii Innovations Limited
Onkimmume Limited

HVAC Remote Monitoring Limited
Signum Surgical Limited
Vetex Medical Limited
Neurent Medical Limited

Kite Medical Limited

Atrian Medical Limited

ined hereunder,

Principal activity

Development of chemicals

Software consultancy/supply
Consultancy

Software consultancy/supply

Database activities

Medical practice activities

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products
Software supply

Orthopaedic implants technology
Technology for the detection of legionella
Software Development

Cancer Immunotherapies

Energy Efficiency

Gastrointestinal Devices

Cardiovascular Devices

Device for the treatment of rhinitis
Device for the detection of kidney reflux
Device for the treatment of atrial fibrillation

2019
Interest %
18.57%
10.00%
15.00%
10.00%
8.63%
4.95%
10.00%
10.00%
5.00%
9.65%
6.00%
2.00%
5.00%
4.91%
7.32%
4.30%
5.66%
7.50%

2018
Interest %
18.57%
10.00%
15.00%
10.00%
8.63%
6.23%
7.00%
10.00%
2.52%
9.65%
7.50%
2.00%
5.00%
5.33%
10.00%
4.30%
5.66%
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14. Inventory (Inventory principally consists of books and consumables)

2019 2018
\ €000 €°000
University 90 20
Subsidiaries 15 12
105 102

15. Receivables
Consolidated University Consolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
Research grant debtors 24 425 24,425 21,856 21,856
Other debtors 4,784 4,386 2,930 1,616
Accounts receivable 083 983 1,084 1,084
Staff housing loans 4 4 4 4
Pension account debtor 7,362 7,362 2,753 2,753
Capital grants receivable from Galway University Foundation 6,578 6,578 14,828 14,828
Intercompany balances - 3 - 36
44,136 43,741 43,455 42,171

Capital grants receivable from Galway University Foundation: Under the terms of the agreed transfer schedule with GUF,
€6.1m of the capital grants receivable from GUF is due to be paid to the University within twelve months of the Statement

of Financial Position date.

Accounts receivable are stated net of a provision for bad debts of €0.11m (2018: €0.074m).

Pension account debtor: This relates to amounts receivable from the State to fund pension contributions for pension

scheme members.

16. Other investments

Consolidated University Consolidated University

2019 2019
€000s €000s
Bank deposits with maturity date
greater than three months and less
than or equal to one year 28,416 28,416

2018 2018
€000s €000s

36,188 36,188
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17. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Annual Report and Consalidated Financial Statements 2019

Consolidated  University Consolidated  University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
Trade creditors and accruals 36,769 30944 31,946 24,936
Research grants and contracts received in advance 46,644 46,044 55,421 55,421
Retention monies 377 an 1,795 1,795
Fees received in advance 32,464 32,464 30,278 30,278
Intercompany balances - 211 - 172
State grants received in advance/(due) 5,673 5,673 (220) (220)
Bank Loans (Note 19) 867 867 - -
Deferred capital grants (Note 20) 7,890 7,890 5,637 5,637
130,684 125,070 124,857 118,019
18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Consolidated University Consolidated University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
Bank loans (Note 19) 59,133 59,133 39,000 39,000
Deferred capital grants (Note 20) 140,915 140,915 141,641 141,641
200,048 200,048 180,641 180,641
19, Bank loans/borrowings
Consolidated University Consolidated  University
2019 2019 2018 2018
€000s €000s €000s €000s
Bank loans are repayable as follows: (restated) (vestated)
Amounts falling due in one year or less 867 867 - -
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Due between one and two years 1,733 1,733 867 867
Due between two and five years 8,000 8,000 5,200 5,200
After more than five years 49,400 49,400 32,933 32,933
59,133 59,133 39,000 39,000
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19. Bank loans/borrowings (continued)

The European Investment Bank (EIB) has provided part of the funding necessary for the University’s capital expenditure
programme. This funding will allow the University to complete a comprehensive programme of capital investment
including much needed academic and student facilities. This loan facilitatcs three significant projects:

@) the Human Biology Building which provides for medical education,
(ii) the Centre for Drama, Theatre and Performance which facilitates further study of Irish Theatre and
(i) New Student Residences which will provide over 900 additional bed spaces

The split between due between two and five years and after move than five Yyears has been restated for 2018 due to a change
to the calculation method.

The facility is repayable over a maximum of 25 years (i.e. to 2042) and currently incurs interest at Euribor plus a margin,
The undrawn element of the EIB facility is €nil at 30 September 2019 (2018: €21 m).

20, Deferred capital grants: Consolidated and University

Other grants/

As at 1 October 2018 HEA benefactors Total

€000s €000s €000s
Buildings 115,633 27,385 143,018
Equipment - 4,260 4,260
Total 115,633 31,645 147,278
Received and receivable
Buildings 513 - 513
Equipment ~ - 9,280 9,280
Total 513 9,280 9,793
Released to SOCI
Buildings (3,975) (1,178) (5,153)
Equipment B - B (3,113) (3,113)
Total (3,975) (4,291) (8,266)
As at 30 September 2019
Buildings 112,171 26,207 138,378
Equipment o - 10,427 10,427
Total 112,171 36,634 148,805
Less than one year (Note 17) 3,367 4,523 7,890
Greater than one year 108,804 32,111 140,915
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20. Deferred capital grants: Consolidated and University (continued)

Amount of Opening Grant Closing
total debtor debtor
grant awarded 1 October received 30
2018 September
2019
Grantor Government Name of grant  Grant €000s €000s €000s €000s
funding term
Department
HEA - Dept of Jobs, PRTLICycleS 5-7 32,884 732 (513) 219
PRTLI Enterprise and years
Innovation
HEA - Dept of 3rd Level 5 years 13,380 - - -
other Education and general Capital
Skills Programme
46,264 732 (513) 219

21. Lease commitments

At 30 September 2019, the University had the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:

€000s
Payable within one year 37
Payable within two to five years 120
157

Operating lease payments recognised as an expense were €0.037m (2018: €0.03 7m)

22. Capital commitments

Consolidated University Consolidated University

2019 2019 2018 2018

€000s €000s €000s €000s

Contracted for but not provided 7,737 7,737 9,026 9,026
Authorised but not contracted out 13,180 13,180 6,856 6,856
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23. Related parties

For a breakdown of the remuneration and benefits paid to key management personnel, please refer to Note 8(b). Key
management personnel in the University consist of the President and members of the University Management Team.

The University has availed of the exemption available under “Section 33 Related Party Disclosures™ of Financial Reporting
Standard 102 and the SORP from disclosing transactions entered into with wholly owned group undertakings.

Bimini Limited is an associate company of the University (as UCG Research Applications Limited has a 28% holding).
The company holds a patent. It accounts for the income and related expenses of this patent through the company. The
University as at 30 September 2019 was owed €nil by the company (2018: €nil).

The University also holds a minority shareholding in other entities; these are summarised in note 13.

St Angela’s College Sligo Limited is a company limited by guarantee with linkages to the University in terms of
collaboration and degree accreditation. In accordance with Government policy, the University plans to fully incorporate the
activities of the College upon clearance of related legal matters. Both parties have agreed in principle on the legal
agreement model for the incorporation and the HEA has sanctioned the employment of a director to oversee the
incorporation.

In accordance with FRS102, the financial results of the Students Union, Galway University Foundation Limited, and St
Angela’s College Ltd. have not been consolidated because the University does not exert control or dominant influence over
the policy decisions or activities of these entities.
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24. Retirement benefits

The University operates the following defined-benefit pension schemes, which are included within the pension liability in
the Statement of Financial Position;

> Joint Pension Scheme (JPS) — this is a ‘Pay As You Go’ (PAYG) scheme providing pension benefits at
retirement on a defined benefit basis, covering entrants to 31 December 2004.

» Model Pension Schemes (MPS) — this is a ‘Pay As You Go’ (PAYG) scheme providing pension benefits at
retirement on a defined benefit basis, covering entrants from 1 January 2005,

» The Single Public Service Pension Scheme (“Single Scheme®), — this scheme commenced, with effect
from 1 January 2013. From the commencement date onward new public servants will be members of the
Single Scheme, which will provide CPI-linked defined-benefit pensions based on career-average pay. It is the
responsibility of all relevant authorities (employer) to collect and remit Single Scheme member contributions
for the benefit of the Exchequer.

Joint and Model Pension Schemes

The Financial Measures (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 2009 came into force on 26 June 2009. It makes legal
provision for (a) the State to underwrite the net pension liabilities of the JPS and (b) the transfer of the scheme’s assets
to the State (National Pension Reserve Fund).

On foot of this legislation, the University has recognised a pension receivable from the State of €967m (2018: €857m)
in respect of the Joint Pension Scheme, including supplementation.

Although the legislation relates specifically to the JPS the University believes that the discussions between the
University sector, HEA and Government Departments represent assurances that the State will meet all future pension
liabilities of defined benefit schemes (i.e. JPS and MPS, including supplementation, in Ollscoil na hEireann,
Gaillimh’s case) on a “Pay As You Go™ basis for all categories of staff.

Accordingly, the University has also recognised a matching pension receivable in the Statement of Financial Position
at an amount equivalent to the full pension liability for the MPS for each reported period. The associated receivable
from the State is €230m (2018: €180m).

The Single Public Service Pension Scheme (“Single Scheme”)

The Single Public Service Pension Scheme (“Single Scheme™), as provided for in the Public Service Pensions (Single
Scheme and Other Provisions) Act 2012 commenced, with effect from 1 January 2013, From the commencement date
onward new public servants will be members of the Single Scheme, which will provide CPI-linked defined-benefit
pensions based on career-average pay. The Scheme’s minimum pension age will be linked to the State Pension age
(66 years initially, rising to 67 in 2021 and 68 in 2028). Retirement for most members will be compulsory on reaching
age 70. The Single Scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme (i.e. one scheme for all “relevant anthorities”
within the public sector).

1t is the responsibility of the employer to collect and remit Single Scheme member contributions for the benefit of the
Exchequer. The Single Scheme is included within the University pension liability and, as provided for by the Act,
within the associated receivable from the State. The associated receivable from the State is €23m (2018: €13m).

The following disclosures comply with those required under FRS102, which stipulates the methodology for deriving
assumptions to be used in calculating the University’s pension liabilities and requires disclosure of the University’s
full pension liability including the liability for post-retirement pension increases payable to pensioners.

The amounts included in these financial statements in relation to pension liabilities are taken from an actuarial
valuation report of the pension liabilities prepared by an independent actuary, This report is based on actuarial data as
at 30 September 2019. While this report is not publicly available, the more salient points are reproduced in this note.
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24. Retirement benefits (continued)
The following tables elaborate further on the basis/calculation of the pension liability.

Atyear-end 30 | At year-end 30
September 2019 | September 2018
(€'000) (€'000)
Assumed annual rate
Discount rate 1.20% 2.20%
Rate of increase in Consumer Prices Index 1.30% 1.80%
Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 2.55% 3.05%
Rate of increase in social welfare offset 1.80% 2.30%
Rate of increase in pensions 1.80%/1.30% 2.30%/1.80%
Average expected future life at age 65 for
Male 21.3 21.2
Female 239 23.8
At year-end 30 At year-end 30
September 2019 | September 2018
(€'000) (€'000)
Change in benefit obligation
Opening value of schemes liabilities 1,050,275 978,878
Current service cost 37,942 35,316
Interest cost on schemes' liabilities 22,941 22,344
Member contributions 6,121 5,680
Actuarial losses 124,424 28,572
Benefits paid (21,159) (20,515)
Gross University pension liability at end of year 1,220,544 1,050,275
Pension receivable from State 1,220,544 1,050,275
Total asset value at end of year 1,220,544 1,050,275

Net pension deficit at year end -
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24. Retirement benefits (continued)

Change in pension receivable from State
Opening receivable

Movement included in SOCI
State-funded interest expense

Movement relating to staff costs

Member contributions

Benefits paid

Employer contributions

Closing pension receivable

Amounts recognised in Statement of Financial Position
Pension liability

Pension receivable

Net pension deficit

Analysed as:

Joint Pension Scheme (no supplementation)
Joint Pension Scheme (supplementation only)
Other

Components of pension income (FRS17)
Net deferred Government funding (to cover)
Staff costs

Interest expense

Amount recognised in I&E account

Analysed as:
Joint Pension Scheme
Other

Components of pension expense
Staff costs
Employer contributions
Impact of accounting sterndard for defined-benefit pensions:
- current service cast
Total impact of accounting standard for defined-benefit pensions

Current and past service costs

Analysed as:
Joint Pension Scheme
Other

At year-end 30 | At year-end 30
September 2019 | September 2018
(€'000) (€'000)
1,050,275 978,878
124 424 28,572
22,941 22,344
26,222 23,246
6,121 5,680
(21,159) (20,515)
11,720 12,070
1,220,544 1,050,275
1,220,544 1,050,275
_(1,220,544)  (1,050,275)
734,908 654,303
232,422 202,431
253214 193,541
1,220,544 1,050,275
26,222 23,246
22,941 22,344
49,163 45,590
32,986 31,444
16,177 14,146
49,163 45590
11,720 12,070
26,222 23,246
26,222 23,246
37,942 35,316
21,592 20,209
16,350 15,107
37,942 35316
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24, Retirement benefits (continued)

Atyear-end | At year-end
30 30
September September
2019 (€'000) | 2018 (€'000)

Interest expense

Interest cost on scheme liabilities 22,941 22,344

Analysed as:

Joint Pension Scheme 18,650 18,519

Other 4291 3,825

22,941 2234

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Experience gains arising on scheme liabilities (5,239) (3,935)

Change in assumptions underlying the present value of pension

scheme liabilities 129,663 32,507

Movement in pension receivable _ (124,424) (28,572)

Total pension cost recognised in STRGL - -

Analysed as:

Joint Pension Scheme (88,406) (21,655)

Other (36,018) (6,917)
(124,424) (28,572)

History of defined benefit obligations, assets and experience gains and losses

Financial year ending 30 September 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
€000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000

Defined benefit obligation 1,220,544 1,050,275 978,878 1,143,499 997,902
Fair value of plan assets - - - - -
Pension receivable from State 1,220,544 1,050,275 978,878 1,143,499 997,902
Deficit - - - - -
Experience gains on plan liabilities (5,239) (3,935) (54.276) (28,123)  (24,870)
% of plan labilities 0.43%)  (0.37%) (5.54%) (246%)  (2.49%)
Experience adjustment on assets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
% of closing assets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Other

Contributions (both employer and employee) to pension schemes for the year ended 30 September 2020 are estimated
to be €14m.

A PRSA pension facility is also available for staff not eligible for enrolment in the defined-benefits schemes. It is
administered by a third party insurance company. There are no employees contributing to this scheme currently.
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25. Contingent liabilities

On 22™ Qctober 2018, the University issued a Standby Letter of Credit for USD $225,511 in favour of Wells Fargo
Bank related to a US Department of Education Federal Aid programme for US student botrowers. In the opinion of
management, this credit line will never be executed.

The University is involved in a number of legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. No material adverse
impact in the financial position of the University is expected to arise from the ultimate resolution of these actions.

The Financial Measures (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 2009, §.11 provided that discretion in the matter of pension-
fund member’s tights or benefits pass from the University’s Governing Authority io the relevant Minister(s). Prior to
this Act, custom and practice was for the University’s Governing Authority to award ‘added year’ pension benefits to
qualifying staff. Legally, the discretion to award added years now rests with the Ministers and they have not given their
approval. Impacted pension fund members have sought redress from the University, which continues to negotiate with
the DES in the matter.

While the potential exposure arising from this can be measured reliably, the liability is ‘contingent’ on Ministerial
approval for payment of the disputed added years. The estimated liability of €12m is therefore disclosed as a
contingent liability.

26. Restatement of prior-year figures

Where figures are presented in a different format in the current year, prior-year amounts are restated to ensure consistency
and comparability, year-on-year.

27. Subsequent events after year end

The University is closely monitoring the impact of the coronavirus/COVID-19 outbreak that struck Europe in early 2020
resulting in Government restrictions on travel and workplace attendance from 12 March 2020. The University has adapted
well to remote working in all aspects of its operations and it continues to develop mitigation plans to deal with the financial
impact of the evolving crisis.

While the negative financial impacts in the current year 2019/2020 are forecast to be manageable, the impact on 2020/2021

and subsequent years is likely to prove far more challenging. Much depends on the extent of “social distancing’ required to
keep the virus in check as the world awaits development of a vaccine.

At the time of writing, the Governing Authority sees no threat to the financial viability of the University and believes the
application of the going concem concept in these financial statements is appropriate in the circumstances.

As set out in Note le, Galway University Foundation is not a subsidiary as the University did not exert control or dominant
influence over its activities. However, subsequent to the financial year-end, the University appointed a Vice President for
Development whose responsibilities include fundraising and alumni activities. Most of the staff of the Foundation have
since transferred to the University payroll and are now under the direction of the Vice President. The impact of these
changes on the University’s assessment of its relationship with the Foundation will be considered in 2020.

28. Approval of financial statements

Udarés na hOllscoile approved these consolidated financial statements on 235 June 2020.
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SCHEDULES

The information on the following pages does not form part of the audited financial statements
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Reconciliation of HEA to FRS102-format surplus 2019 2018
€000s €000s

(as restated)

Surplus as per HEA-format financial statements 1,619 371
Capital grant amortisation 8,266 5,940
Reversal of capital project funding from SOCI 8,357 3,273
Adjustment to income from research activity (557) 8,192
Net impact from miscellaneous subsidiaries activity 416 799
Reversal of capital expenditure recognised on HEA-format SOCI 474 161
Net accrued other post-year end entries (income, expenditure) 763 (70)
Adjustment for net accrual for pensions added-years 690 -
Adjustment for financial assets carrying value - m
Net internal balances reversal (1,3%4) 940
Depreciation (including subsidiaries) (16,851) (13,759)
Adjustment to provision for bad debts (252) 400
Holiday pay accrual impact (104) 81
Donations from non-government entities and student levy for capital projects 1,589 1,543
Surplus as per consolidated FRS102 financial statements 3,025 7,708

-

The above reconciliation is additional information not forming part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh — Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The University’s commitment to CSR is clearly demonstrated in its range of related policies
and strategies that focus on regulatory compliance, professional management, ethical
investment, sustainable energy, family friendly practices, community engagement, as well as
EDI (equality, diversity and inclusion).

During the year, 2018/19, the University began the task of devising an updated strategy to
build on its Vision 2020 - Strategic Plan. The new plan covering 2020/2025, which is
scheduled to be launched in December 2019, adopts a Values-Led approach to strategy
implementation.

The plan focuses on five key values with strong links to CSR, i.e. sustainability, respect,
access (openness), expert (excellence), and distinctiveness. There are clear commitments to
engage positively with the city, the region, the community, and the environment.

During the year, NUI Galway was designated as a University of Sanctuary by Places of
Sanctuary Ireland (PoSI ). Under this initiative, the University joins a network of groups in
local communities which share the objectives of promoting a culture of welcome and
inclusiveness across Irish society for those seeking International Protection in Ireland. The
University of Sanctuary steering committee at NUI Galway also includes the Irish Traveller
community in its remit, with a focus on the promotion of Irish Traveller culture as an innate
and positive element of Irish society, and to address the low levels of participation at second
and third-level education amongst Irish Travellers.

The University’s Community and University Sustainability Project (CUSP) confirmed the
appointment of a fulltime coordinator in 2019 and continues its work of making Ollscoil na
hEireann, Gaillimh one of the greenest, smartest and healthiest campuses in the world.

Its commitment to sustainable energy practices resulted in formal certification of the
University’s Energy Management System to ISO 50001, following an energy audit carried
out by Lucideon (formally known as CICS) in 2018.

A number of the University’s research projects are actively involved in sustainable
energy/environmentally friendly initiatives like SEAFUEL which aims to use hydrogen as a
renewable car-fleet power resource and CAUSEWAY, to develop a network of natural
gas/clean energy refueling facilities for the motor transport sector.

In revising its strategic approach to financial investments during the year, the University
updated its policy to include a clear and unambiguous commitment to the United Nations
Principles of Responsible Investment (UN PRI).

46



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

Udaris na hOllscoile Meetings — Attendance List 2018/19

Cathaoirleach:

| Mrs Justice Catherine McGuinness | 6/6
President:
| Prof Ciaran O hOgartaigh | 6/6

Registrar and Deputy-President:

| An tOll, P61 O Dochartaigh | 6/6

Profs/Associate Professors (5):

Professor Vincent O'Flaherty 3/6
Professor Terry Smith 4/6
Professor Grace McCormack 6/6
Professor Tim O’Brien 3/6
Professor Breda Sweeney 3/6

Other Academic Staff (5):

Ms Ursula Connolly 4/6
Dr Ann Torres 3/6
Dr Anthony Grehan 6/6
Dr Anne O’Connor 4/6
Dr Gerard Wall 3/6
Other Employees (3):

Ms Sinead Beacom 516
Dr Eric Mortimer 4/6
Mr Brendan O'Looney 6/6

Elected Officers of Comhaltas na Mac Léinn (2):

Ms Megan Reilly (SU President) 4/6

Ms Eibhlin Seoighthe (SU VP/Education) 5/6

Postgraduate Student (1):

Ms Michelle Mitchell {first term) 22
(term February 1, 2018 — January 31, 2019)
Ms Michelle Miichell (second term) 3/4
(term February 1, 2019 — January 31, 2020)




Oliscoll na hEireann, Gaillimh Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2019

Udarss na hOllscoile Meetings — Attendance List 2018/19 (con’d)

Nominations of External Organisations (3):

Mr Donagh O'Donoghue 5/6
Ms Sinead Ni Fhatharta 5/6
Ms Ruth Curran 5/6
Graduates (4):

Mr Conor Fottrell 4/6
BGen Ger Aherne 6/6
Mr John Glynn 3/6
Mr Eoin Nevlon 1/6

Local Authority Nominees (7):

Cllr Pearce Flannery (Galway City Council) 2/6
Clir Eileen Mannion (Galway County Council) 172
Clir Michael Connolly (Galway County Council) 3/4
Clir P.J. Kelly (Clare County Council) 5/6
Clir Richard Finn (Mayo County Council) 2/6
Clir John McCartin (Leitrim County Council) 6/6
CllIr Rosaleen O’Grady (Sligo County Council) 3/6
ClIr John Cummins (Roscommon County Council) 2/6

NUI Nominees (2):

Dr Catherine Caulfield 3/6

Mr Noel Daly 4/6

President of 5t Angela's College, Sligo:

| Dr Anne Taheny | 6/6

Artistic/Cultural Category (1):

| Dr Rionach Ni Néill | 4/6

Minister's Nominees {3):

Mr Harry McGee 4/6

Dr John Greally 5/6

Ms Madeleine Tavlor-Quinn 5/6

Meeting Dates:

26 October, 2018

14 December, 2018

28 February 2019

20 March 2019 (special meeting)
30 April 2019

28 June 2019
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
DIRECTORS' REPORT

for the year ended 30 June 2019
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019.

About Galway University Foundation

Vision

Since its establishment in 1998, Galway University Foundation CLG has been engaged in generating financial
support for NUI Galway's programmes and activities from a range of private individuals and institutions. A core part of
our work is in nurturing lasting relationships with donors who share NUI Galway's vision for the future.

Mission

The mission of the Foundation is to raise philanthropic funding in support of the objectives of NUI Galway. We
gratefully acknowledge all of the visionary and generous individuals and organisations who have supported our
activities in the year ended 30 June 2019. Their support, and the support of donors over many years, has
transformed the NUI Galway campus, supported our students and funded life-changing research.

Strategy
In FY2020, the Foundation will prepare a new strategic plan to support the achievement of NUI Galway's 2020 —
2025 strategic plan.

Activities in FY2019:
The Foundation supported the following NUI Galway projects and programmes in FY2019:

Alumni Relations

During the year, Galway University Foundation continued its engagement with alumni nationally and intemationally
as part of its management of the Alumni Network on behalf of NUI Galway. Alumni engagement events were
held in Galway, Dublin, Chicago and New York which were attended by approximately 1,300 graduates. The
Alumni Relations team also engaged with approximately 70,000 graduates via social media.

Due to successful donor engagement and support, the Foundation was able to provide substantial financial support
for the following NUI Galway projects:

Mainstreaming Programme
Student Scholarships

Medical Research

Innovation Programmes

Other Programmatic

Student Sports Clubs & Societies
Research Lectureships

Financial Review
The results for the year are set out in the Statement of Financial Activities on page 12.

Incoming Resources
Total income for FY2019 was €2.83M (2018: €3.50M) which comprised of:
e Donor Income €2.33M (2018: €2.42M)
s Interest & Similar Income €1.90M (2018: €1.43M)
e Movement on Unrealised Investment Gain (€1.40M) (2018: (€352K))
» The Foundation received no income from State sources
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for the year ended 30 June 2019

Expenditure
Total expenditure in FY2019 was €6.20M (2018: €27.88M)
o 86% (2018: 97%) of expenditure (€5.31M (2018: €27.03M)) related to Charitable Activities and comprised of
the following:
¢ Transfers to NU! Galway projects €3.81M (2018: €24.26M)
» Transfers to Tusla Mainstreaming Programme €1.15M (2018: €2.48M)
» Operating expenses - Other Charitable activities €351K (2018: €295K)

Beneficiaries of Charitable Expenditure included Medical Research, Student Scholarships, Innovation
Programmes and student supports at NUI Galway

Other expenditure related to fundraising costs which totalled €886K (2018: €846K). Pay costs were
approximately 57% (2018: 62%) of operating expenditure.

As has been the practice, the Foundation funds its operating expenses through the retention of interest and
investment income, a contribution from NUI Galway (€240,000 (2018: €240,000)) towards certain operating
expenses and through the application of a discretionary levy (maximum 5%) on donor income received. The
application of the levy has no material effect on any donor funded projects as NUI Galway is responsible for the
balance of funds required. In the financial period to 30 June 2018, the total amount levied on donor income was
€5,600 (2018: €5,618). It also makes grants to projects from surplus investment income.

The net expenditure for the year after providing for depreciation amounted to (€3,370,034) (2018 — (€24,383,232)).

At the end of the year, the group had fixed and current assets of €21,241,745 (2018 - €38,260,135) and liabilities of
€9,391,869 (2018 - €23,057,583). Following transfers to projects, the net assets of the group have decreased by
(€3,352,676) (2018: (€24,396,862)).

Cashflow, Bank and Investment Balances

Bank and investment balances are carefully monitored by the Foundation and are subject to the Foundation’s
Investment Policy. At 30 June 2019, the Foundation had bank balances of €4.64M (2018: €5.71M) and
investment balances of €16.37M (2018: €32.53M).

Investment Policy: The Board of the Foundation adopted its current Investment Policy in June 2014. The Board
monitars performance of investments and compliance with the Investment Policy via regular reporting to both the
Board's Investment Committee and the Board itself.

Borrowings policy: The Foundation does not have any bank borrowings.

Restricted and Unrestricted Funds

At 30 June 2019, the Foundation had total funds of €11.85M (2018: €15.20M). Restricted funds comprising of funds
directed to specific NUI Galway projects totalled €10.27M (2018: €10.41M). Unrestricted Funds totalled €1.58M
(2018: €4.79M) including operating funds.

Looking Forward

Plans and Challenges for FY2020

The Foundation will continue to work closely with a range of organisations and individuals to secure
philanthropic funding for University priority projects. A number of specific initiatives are planned in order to
strengthen the linkages between the University and its alumni and development functions. The Foundation will
continue to actively manage any funds not yet advanced to the University in order to maximise investment
returns whilst having due regard to capital protection and liquidity requirements. The Foundation is committed
to full compliance with the Charities Act 2009. In 2020, the Foundation will adopt the Charities Governance
Code issued by the Charities Regulator.
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Risks and Risk Management

Principal Rigks and Uncertainties
The directors consider that the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the group are in the following categories:

Economic risk:
The risk of the economic environment having an adverse impact on the ability of current and potential donors to
contribute to the Foundation into the future.

Financial risks:

These include investment, liquidity and other financial risks. The group has budgetary and financial reporting
procedures to manage these risks. The Board's audit and investment committees monitor compliance with these
procedures on an ongoing basis. As the Foundation is funded through investment income, the board is managing the
Foundation's funds in a conservative manner while monitoring all operating costs and procedures to ensure an
appropriate cost/income ratio.

Fundraising risk:

Fundraising risk is the risk that the entity will lose the support of its principal or other funders. The group pro-actively
manages its relationship with its key funders to ensure that it is protected and actively seek new funders on an
ongoing basis.

Structure, Governance and Management

Lega! Structure

Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee is a registered charity in Ireland. The entity is
governed by its Constitution and is controlied by its Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer reports to the
Board.

Best Practice Governance

In June 2016, the Foundation adopted The Governance Code which sets out principles of good governance for
charitable organisations. The Foundation continues to monitor evolving corporate governance in the charitable
sector. All operational expenditure is subject to an annual budget approved by the Board. Board approval is required
for expenditure above stated limits.

In accordance with its Constitution, the Foundation is controlled by a Board of Directors who meet at least four times
per annum. The Board has the power to appoint additional directors. The Board has a minimum of five members with
no maximum limit on membership. Board members include the President of NUl Gaiway who is an ex-officio
member. Other directors include graduates and friends of NUI Galway. The Board currently has two sub committees,
namely the Investment Committee and the Audit Committee.

Internal controls

The Directors acknowledge their overall responsibility for the Foundation’s system of internal control. This system
includes financial controls, which enable the Board to meet its responsibilities for the integrity and accuracy of the
Foundation’s accounting records.

The Board acknowledges their wider responsibility to maintain, review and report on all internal controls including
operational as well as financial.
Key elements of the internal control system include:

e Board approved policies and procedures are in place to govern processes relating to donations, income,

expenditure, treasury, fixed assets and travel and subsistence;

¢ All policies and procedures are documented and communicated to staff,

« Organisational structure in place with defined roles, responsibilities and segregation of duties; and

¢ The Audit Committee reports to the Board on all aspects of controls and risks.
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Directors and Secretary
The directors who served throughout the year, except as noted, were as follows:

Mark Moran (Board Chair)

Dr. Brian Joyce

Dr. Finian O'Sullivan

Professor Pél O Dochartaigh
Dr Helen Ryan

Brendan Jennings

Margaret Sweeney

Professor Ciaran O hOgartaigh

The secretary who served throughout the year was Dénal Cahalane.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the directors retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

As a registered charity and in accordance with the Constitution, Directors are not entitled to any remuneration for
their roles as Board members. The Foundation may incur, or reimburse Directors for, expenses such as travel and
accommodation which arise in carrying out their roles in support of the Foundation’s mission fo support NUI Galway.

Taxation
Galway University Foundation CLG i¢ a registered charity (CHY number 12894) and is exempt from Corporation tax.

Subsidiary Gompany

The group owns 100% of Galway University Foundation Inc, a company incorporated in the United States of America.
Galway University Foundation Inc. is a not-for-profit organisation that seeks to provide support for the mission and
objectives of NUI Galway.

Post Statement of Financial Position Events

On October 1st 2019, the Foundation concluded an agreement with NUl Galway relating to the transfer of certain
business functions and related employees from the Foundation to the University in order to strengthen linkages
between the University and its alumni and development functions. The Foundation has underiaken to make a
donation of €400,000 in support of the University's development activities by 30th December 2019. The Foundation
will continue to receive donations in support of NU! Galway and to act as the custodian of such donor funds.

Auditors
The auditors, Mazars, (Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm) have indicated their willingness to continue in
office in accordance with the provisions of section 383(2) of the Companies Act 2014.

Statement on relevant audit information
In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time this report is approved in accordance with section
332 of Companies Act 2014:

(a) so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the group's statutory auditors are
unaware, and

(b) each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the group's statutory auditors are aware of that
information.

Accounting Records

To ensure that adequate accounting records are kept in accordance with sections 281 to 285 of the Companies Act
2014, the directors have employed appropriately qualified accounting personnel and have maintained appropriate
computerised accounting systems. The accounting records are located at the group's office at Gate Lodge, University
Road, Galway.

Signed on behalf of the Board

L MA T o= | BatdSen

Mark Mdran (Board ?hair) «-’-—-Breﬁ'd'éﬁ'jenn%
Director Director S
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 June 2018

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Repart and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable Irish law and regutations.

Irish company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the Companies Act 2014 and FRS 102
"The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” issued by the Financial Reporling
Councit and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland and Statement of Recommended
Practice (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), issued by the Charity Commissioners for England and Wales and the Office of
the Scotiish Charities Regulator.

Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the group as at the financial year end date and of
the surplus or deficit of the group for the financial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies for the group's financial statements and then apply them cansistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with applicable accounting standards,
identify those standards, and note the effect and the reasons for any material departure from those standards;
and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group
will confinue in business; and

- observe methods and principles in Charity SORP.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the group keeps or causes to be kept adequate accounting records
which correctly explain and record the transactions of the group, enable at any time the assets, liabilities, financial
position and surplus or deficit of the group to be determined with reasonable accuracy and enable them to ensure
that the financial statemenis and Directors' Report comply with the Companies Act 2014 and enable the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Signed on behalf of the board

YT e B )

s ™~
Mark Morah (Board CHair) —Brendan Jennings/
Director Director

Date: (575 I \\ I O™ Date: C’?)/ \\\ pD\c\ .




MAZARS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
to the Members of Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements of Galway University Foundation Company
Limited by Guarantee (the group’) and its subsidiaries (‘the group') for the year ended 30 June 2019 which comprise
the Group Statement of Financial Activity, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement of
Financial Position, the Company Statement of Financial Position, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Group Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes to the financial statements, including & summary of significant
accounting palicies set out in note 2. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
Irish Law and FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland”,

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the group and parent company as at 30
June 2019 and of the group's deficit for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Repubilic of lreland”; and

- have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014,

Basis for opinion ,

We conducted our audit in accardance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (lreland) (ISAs (lreland}) and
applicable law, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for
Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (Ireland) require us to report to

you where:

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

- the directors have not disclosed in the financial slatements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group's ability to continue to adapt the going concern basis of accounting for a period
of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report other than the financial statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the cother information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014

Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:

- in our opinion, the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- in our opinion, the Directors' Report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary far the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting recards of the group were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be readily and

properly audiied. The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
to the Members of Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors' Report. The Companies
Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors' remuneration and transactions
required by sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing to report in this regard. -

Respective responsibilities

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
af the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's ability to continue as a
going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to the going concem and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the group or to cease operation, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA's website
at: <www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dcOc3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for
audit.pdf.> The description forms part of our Auditor's Report.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the group's members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act
2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the group's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an Auditor's Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume any responsibility to anyone other than the group and the group's members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

QM’{:\'_ &LW

Austin Sammon

for and on behalf of

MAZARS

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
Mayoralty House,

Flood Street,

Galway

Date: S//ll /1019
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 30 June 2019
2019 2018
Notes € €
Non-Current Assets
Intangible Fixed Assets 13 8,499 6,375
Tangible Fixed Assets 14 1,726 1,835
Financial Assets 15 16,374,193 32,529,221
16,384,418 32,537,431
Current Assets
Debtors 16 220,754 9,337
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 4,636,573 5,713,367
4,857,327 5,722,704
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 17 (9,391,869) (16,357,583)
Net Current Liahilities (4,534,542) (10,634,879)
Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year 18 - (6,700,000)
Net Assets 11,849,876 15,202,552
Funds
Restricted Funds 21 10,270,578 10,413,072
Unrestricted Funds 21 69,439 66,481
Designated Funds 21 1,509,859 4,722,999

Total Funds 11,849,878 15,202,552

Approved by the board on 05 November 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

‘ =
KMA‘/-T()O'»/—'-_ , %@&S/gu ~ /
Mark Mdran (Board Chair) —=" Brendan Jennings__
Director Director —

The notes on pages 16 to 31 form part of the financial statements



Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 30 June 2019
2019
Notes €

Non-Current Assets
Intangible Fixed Assets 13 8,499
Tangible Fixed Assets 14 1,726
Financial Assets 15 16,384,112

16,394,337
Current Assets
Debtors 16 220,754
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 3,876,925

4,097,679

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 17 (9,351,824)
Net Current Liabilities (5,254,145)
Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year 18 -
Net Assets 11,140,192
Funds
Restricted Funds 21 9,541,454
Unrestricted Funds 21 91,389
Designated Funds 21 1,507,349

Total Funds 11,140,192

RESULTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR

2018

6,375
1,835
32,539,744

32,547,954

760
4,928,331

4,929,001
(16,263,084)

(11,333,993)

(6,700,000)
14,513,961
9,704,909
88,431
4,720,621

14,513,961

The net expenditure for the year of the parent company after providing for depreciation amounted to (€3,373,769))

(2018- (€24,461,298)).

Approved by the board on 05 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

. e
A TV e e N,

Mark Mdran (Board Chair) Brendan Jennings
Director Director el

The notes on pages 16 to 31 form part of the financial statements
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

as at 30 June 2019

Balance at 30 June 2017

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Foreign Currency difference on

translation of subsidiary

Balance at 30 June 2018

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Foreign Currency difference on

translation of subsidiary

Balance at 30 June 2019

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

as at 30 June 2019

Balance at 30 June 2017

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Balance at 30 June 2018

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Balance at 30 June 2019

Restricted Unrestricted Designated Total
- Funds Funds Funds
€ € € €
34,745,727 65,181 4,788,506 39,599,414
(24,319,054) 1,300 (65,478) (24,383,232)
(13,601) - {29) {13,630)
10,413,072 66,481 4722999 15,202,552
(159,794) 2,958 (3,213,198) (3,370,034)
17,300 - 58 17,358
10,270,578 69,439 1,509,859 11,849,876
Restricted Unrestricted Designated Total
Funds Funds Funds
€ € € €
34,101,103 87,131 4,787,025 38,975,259
(24,396,194) 1,300 (66,404) (24,461,298)
9,704,909 88,431 4,720,621 14,513,961
(163,455) 2,958 (3.213,272) (3,373,769)
9,541,454 91,389 1,507,349 11,140,192

14



Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Cash flows from charitable activities

Net expenditure for the year

Adjustments for:

Investment Income

Fair value gains and losses

Interest received and similar income

Depreciation

Foreign Exchange differences

Movements in working capital:
Movement in Debtors
Movement in Creditors

Cash used in charitable operations

Cash flow from investing activities
Payments o acquire tangible fixed assets
Payments to acquire intangible fixed assets
Payments to acquire investments

Receipts from sale of investments
Realisation of short term investments
Interest and similar income received
Income received on investments

Net cash flow from investing activities
Net (deficit)/ surplus in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 2018

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2019

Note

27

2019 2018
€ €
(3,370,034) (24,383,232)
{1,656,401) (1,180,715)
1,399,164 351,869
(240,286) (250,819)
5,572 2,168
17,358 (13,630)
(3,844,627) (25,474,359)
(211,417) 3,298
(13,665,714) 16,933,899
(17,721,758 (8,537,162)
(1,213) -
(6,374) (6,375)
(1,649,881) (1,342,198)
16,405,745 816,420
- 10,154,915
240,286 250,819
1,656,401 1,180,715
16,644,964 11,054,296
(1,076,794) 2,517,134
5,713,367 3,196,233
4,636,573 5,713,367

15



Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee (Galway University Foundation CLG) is a
company limited by guarantee and does not have a share capital. The company was incorporated in the
Republic of Ireland and Is a registered charity (CRA 20038823). The address of the registered office is Gate
Lodge, University Road, Galway. The principal activity for which the group is established is engaging in
fundraising activities for the purposes of the furtherance of education and research carried out by the National
University of ireland, Galway, in its pursuit of education, teaching and research,

The consolidated financial statements comprising the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activity, the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Company Statement of Financial Position, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes constitute the individual financial statements of
Galway University Foundation CLG for the financial year ended 30 June 2019.

The financial statements have been presented in Euro (€) which is also the functional currency of the group
and rounded to the nearest Euro.

In order to provide information relevant to understanding the stewardship of the directors and the
performance and financial position of the charity, Galway University Foundation CLG has prepared its
financial statements in accordance with the formats provided for in the Charities SORP.

As permitted by section 291(3)(4) of the Companies Act 2014, the Group has varied the standard formats
specified in that Act for the Statement of Financial Activities, the Statement of Financial Position and the
Statement of Cash Flows. Departures from the standard formats, as outlined in the Companies Act 2014,
are to comply with the requirements of the Charities SORP and are in compliance with Sections 4.7, 10.6
and 15.2 of the Charities SORP. The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available to it
under section 304 of the Companies Act 2014, which permits a company that publishes its company and
group financial statements together not to present its own statement of financial activities and related
notes.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in refation to the group’s financial statements.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the group for the year ended 30 June 2019 have been prepared on the going
concern basis and in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of lreland” (FRS 102). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) (FRS 102) “Accounting and Reporting by Charities”.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with the
historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for assets The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is the Companies Act 2014 and FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland” issued by the Financial Reporting Council and promulgated by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Ireland and the Statement of Recommended Practice (Charities SORP (FRS102))
as published by the Charity Commission for England and Wales and the Office of the Scottish Regulator
which is recognised by the UK Accounting Standards Board (ASB) as the appropriate body to issue SORPs
for the charity sector in the UK. Financial reporting in line with SORP is considered best practice for charities
in Ireland. As noted above, the directors consider that the adoption of the SORP requirements is the most
appropriate accounting to properly reflect and disclose the activities of the organisation.
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Income

All income is included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the group is entitled to the income, the
amount can be measured with reasonable accuracy and receipt is probable. The following specific policies
are applied to particular categories of income:

Fundraising Income: Fundraising income is credited to the Statement of Financial Activities in the year in
which it is receivable by the group.

Donations and legacies: Voluntary income including denations, gifts and legacies are recognised where
there is entitlement, receipt is probable, and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability. Such
income is only deferred when the donor specifies that the grant or donation must only be used in future
accounting periads or the donors have imposed conditions which must be met before the charity has
unconditional entitlement.

Investment Income: Income eamned on funds held on deposit or in short-term or long-term funds is treated
as income and is credited when earned.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised on an accruals basis as a liability is incurred and is recorded as part of the
expenditure to which it relates. Cost of raising funds comprises the costs associated with attracting voluntary
income.

Expenditure on charitable activities is those costs incurred by the charity in the delivery of its services for its
beneficiaries. It includes both costs that can be allocated directly to such activities and those costs of an
indirect nature necessary to support them, inciuding alumni activities.

Governance costs include those costs associated with meeting the constitutional and statutory requirements
of the charity. Where costs cannot be directly attributed, they have been allocated in proportion to estimated
benefits received.

Support costs arise from those functions that assist the work of the charity but do not directly undertake
charitable activities. Support costs include finance, ICT, administration, legal and compliance fees. Costs are
charged to each service and activity in proportion to expenditure, which is considered to reflect estimated
benefits received. Costs are not allocated to designated or capital funds.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets - initial recognition:

Investments are recognised initially at fair value which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction
costs.

Investments in the share capital of group companies are treated as non-monetary investments and are shown
at cost less provision for permanent impairment, if required.

Cash and cash equivalents are included in the statement of financial position at cost. Cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with a maturity up fo three months.

Subscriptions made to the Seed and Early Stage Equity Funds and MedTech Accelerator Fund 1 are
expensed as incurred as these subscriptions are viewed as being contributions to the innovative business
community, in support of NUI Galway's strategy in this area. Returns earned from these funds will be
recognised as income if and when received.

At the end of the reporting period, if the fair value can be measured reliably, the investments are measured at
fair value through the Statement of Financial Activity.

Income from fixed assets, together with any related tax credit, is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Acfivity in the year in which it is receivable.

17



Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the group has a present obligation (either
legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors best estimate of the expenditure
required fo settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed where the existence of the obligation will only be
confirmed by future events or where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or where the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with reasonable reliability.

Related Party Transactions
Related party transactions are disclosed in accordance with FRS 102 section 33 - Related Party Disclosures.

Tangible Fixed Assets and depreciation

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The charge to depreciation is
calculated to write off the original cost of equipment, less their estimated residual value, over their expected
useful lives as follows:

Office Equipment - 33.33% Straight Line

The carrying values of tangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment in periods if events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are valued at cost less accumulated depreciaticn. At each reporting date the directors
consider the impairment of the software costs, any impairment charge is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activity.

Financial assets

Investments held as non-curreni assets are stated at cost less provision for any permanent diminution in
value. Income from other investments together with any related withholding tax is recognised in the income
and expenditure account in the year in which it is receivable.

Current asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts except where the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
Statement of Financial Position bank overdrafts are shown within Creditors.

Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, unless the effect of discounting wouid be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

The Foundation and University have an agreed policy in respect of the drawdown of funds by the University.
Following the receipt of an authorised drawdown request from the University and approval by the Board of the
Foundation, the requested amount is transferred from Restricted Funds to Creditors.

Employee benefits
The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the group in an independently administered fund.

Taxation
Galway University Foundation CLG is a registered charity (CHY number 12894) and is exempt from
Corporation tax.
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are initially recognised by applying to the foreign currencies amount the spot
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial Position date
are translated using the closing rate. The resulting exchange differences are dealt with in the Statement of
Financial Activity.

Short Term Benefits

Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the service is received. A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused
holiday pay entitlement which is accrued at the Statement of Financial Position date and carried forward to
future periods. This is measured at the undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday entitlement so accrued
at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Charity’s funds
Restricted Funds: Restricted funds are funds received which can only be used for particular purposes
specified by the donors and are binding on the group. Such purposes are within the overall aims of the group.

Unrestricted Funds: Unrestricted funds are those which are expendable at the discretion of the group in
furtherance of any of the objects of the charity. If part of an unrestricted fund is earmarked for a particular
project, it may be designated as a separate fund, but the designation has an administrative purpose only, and
does not legally restrict the group's discretion to apply the fund.

Designated Funds: Designated funds consist primarily of funds which have been allocated towards the
funding of the group’s operating activities and/or in support of the Foundation’s Charitable objectives and may
be utilised at the discretion of the Board for those purposes.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the holding company and all its
subsidiary companies made up to 30 June 2019.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based in historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements relates to the stating of financial assets at market value, which is based on independent
valuations obtained.

The directors consider that apart from the accounting policies above, there are no other accounting estimates
and assumptions which are required to be disclosed.
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

5.

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME
Bank Interest

Other Income
Investment income

These balances have been classified as;
Restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Designated funds

LOSS ON INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

Loss on investments at fair value

through the Statement of Financial Activity

EXPENDITURE ON RAISING FUNDS

Direct Staff Costs
Other Costs
Support Costs

EXPENDITURE ON

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Restricted funds: Transfers to NUI Galway projects
Transfers to TUSLA Mainstreaming
Programme

Unrestricted funds: Transfers to NUI Galway projects

Designated funds: QOperating Expenses

2019 2018
€ €
286 10,818
240,000 240,000
1,656,401 1,180,715
1,896,687 1,431,533
36,125 24,023
1,860,562 1,407,510
1,896,687 1,431,533
2019 2018
€ €
(1,399,164)  (351,869)
2019 2018
€ €
352,464 367,204
144,161 212,757
389,250 965,905
885,875 845,866
2019 2018
€ €
3,768,826 24,200,180
1,147,462 2,482,619
4,916,288 26,682,799
43,145 55,084
351,326 294,907
5,310,759 27,032,790
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

9. SUPPORT COSTS AND ALLOCATION OF EXPENDITURE

(a) Support Costs
Support costs include Finance, Governance and Administration which are allocated across Charitable

Activities and Fundraising on the basis of headcount. Gosts are not allocated to designated or restricted

funds.
(b) Allocation of expenditure
Charitable Cost of Total
Activities Raising
Funds
€ €

€
Direct Expenditure* 5,170,960 496,625 5,667,585
94,136 188,272 282,408

Governance

Finance 40,674 190,195 230,869
Information Technology 3,951 7,802 11,853
Other 1,038 2,881 3,919

Total Resources Expended 5,310,759 885,875 6,196,634

*Direct Expenditure on Charitable Activities includes transfers to projects of €4,969,433 and direct
administrative expenses of €211,527.

{c} Governance costs
2019 2018
€ €
External Audit 5,535 11,439
Board Expenses 2,736 20,777
Annual Report 17,322 17,285
Legal and compliance fees 256,815 71,850
282,408 121,361

Members of the Board do not receive remuneration. Board Expenses include expenses related to the
performance of Directors’ roles in the furtherance of the Foundation's mission to support NUI Galway which

are incurred by the Foundation or reimbursed to Directors.

10. NET EXPENDITURE

2019 2018

Net expenditure is stated after charging/ (crediting): € €
Depreciation of tangible assets 1,322 2,168
Depreciation of intangible assets 4,250 -
Auditors’ remuneration — for external audit services 5,635 11,439
- 21,357

Auditors’ remuneration — other non-audit services

11. DEFICIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

In accordance with section 304 of the Companies Act 2014 a separate Statement of Financial Activity for the
company has not been presented in these financial statements. The net expenditure for the year of the parent
company after providing for depreciation amounted to (€3,373,769) (2018- (€24,461,298))
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

12

EMPLOYEES AND STAFF COSTS

{a) Number of employees
The average number of persons employed (including executive directors) during the year was as follows:

2019 2018
Number Number

Management and administration 9 8
Employees by category: Management & Fundraising: 2 2
Fundraising: 3 3

Charitable Activities: 2 2

Administration: 2 1

{b) The staff costs comprise: 2019 2018
€ €

Wages and salaries 593,703 587,272
Social welfare costs 47,585 46,043
Pension costs 44,627 47,160
685,915 680,475

In addition to the above expenses, a total of 27 persons were employed on a temporary basis at a cost of
€16,635. In 2018, a total of 41 persons were employed on a temporary basis at a cost of €22,269.

(c) Senior staff remuneration 2019 2018
Number Number
The number of staff eamning salaries (excluding the benefits
and pension costs outlined below) over €60,000 is:

Band: €60,000 - €69,999
Band: €90,000 - €99,999
Band: €170,000 - €179,999
Band: €180,000 - €189,999

T
_- =N

The Chief Executive's salary is subject to contract which has been approved by the Board. All staff, who are
required to travel as part of their roles, may claim vouched expenses or subsistence allowances and mileage
allowances in line with Revenue approved rates. The Foundation does not operate a health insurance
scheme for employees.

(d) Key management remuneration
The directors and key management have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the group. They are considered to be the key personnel. The directors do not
receive any remuneration. The total remuneration in respect of key management was €285,797 (2018:
€297,474).

(e) Pension Costs
All Foundation staff are eligible fo join the Foundation's defined contribution scheme or a personal retirement
savings account (PRSA) scheme of their choice. The defined contribution scheme has employer contributions
of 6 - 10% and employee contributions of 6 - 10%. The cost of employer contributions in FY2019 was
€44,627 (2018: €47,160).
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

13.

14.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group and Company

Cost

At 1 July 2018
Additions
Written off

At 30 June 2019
Provision for
diminution in value:
At 1 July 2018
Written off
Depreciation charge
At 30 June 2019

Net book value
At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

TANGIBLE ASSETS
Group and Company

Cost

At 1 July 2018
Additions

At 30 June 2019
Depreciation

At 1 July 2018
Charge for the year
At 30 June 2019

Net book value
At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

Software Total
€ €
17,985 17,985
6,374 6,374
(11,610) (11,610)
12,749 12,749
11,610 11,610
(11,610) (11,610)
4,250 4,250
4,250 4,250
8,499 8,499
6,375 6,375
Office Total
Equipment
€ €
46,459 46,459
1,213 1,213
47 672 47,672
44,624 44,624
1,322 1,322
45,946 45,946
1,726 1,726
1,835 1,835
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Group
Listed Total
investments

Investments € €
Cost
At 1 Juiy 2018 31,102,318 31,102,318
Additions 1,649,881 1,649,881
Disposals (16,405,745) (16,405,745)
At 30 June 2019 16,346,454 16,346,454
Fair Value Movement:
At 1 July 2018 1,426,903 1,426,903
Movement for the year (1,399,164) (1,399,164)
At 30 June 2013 27,739 27,739
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 16,374,193 16,374,193
At 30 June 2018 32,629,221 32,529,221
Company

Subsidiary Listed Total

undertakings investments
shares

investments € € €
Cost
At 1 July 2018 21,948 31,086,554 31,108,502
Additions - 1649426 1,649,426
Disposals - (16,405,745) (16,405,745)
At 30 June 2019 21,948 16,330,235 16,352,183
Fair Value Movements:
At 1 July 2018 - 1,431,242 1,431,242
Movement for the year - (1,399,313) (1,399,313)
At 30 June 2019 - 31,929 31,929
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 21,948 16,362,164 16,384,112
At 30 June 2018 21,948 32,517,796 32,539,744

The listed investments are measured at market value with gains or losses recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activity. The market value of the above listed investments is consistent with the above net book
value at the year end. In the opinion of the directors, the group's listed invesiments are worth at least the
amount at which they are stated in the Statement of Financial Position.

The group own 100% of Galway University Foundation inc. a company incorporated in the United States of
America. Galway University Foundation Inc. is a not-for-profit organisation that pravides support for various
aspects of the National University of Ireland, Galway. At the end of the year, the aggregate capital and
funds of the company amounted to US$832,597 (2018: US$828,347) and surplus for the year amounted to
US$4,250 (2018: US$91,013).

Unlisted investments are carried at cost less impairment because their fair value cannot be measured
reliably.

In the apinion of the directors, the shares of the company's unlisted investments are worth at least the
amount at which they are stated in the Statement of Financial Position
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

16. DEBTORS 2019 2018
€ €

Group
Other debtors 217,754 760
Prepayments and accrued income 3,000 8,677
220,754 9,337

All debtors are due within one year. All transactions were conducted under the group's normal terms, which is

thirty days.
2019 2018
€ €

Company
Other debtors 217,754 760
Prepayments and accrued income 3,000 -
220,754 760

All debtors are due within one year. All transactions were conducted under the company's normal terms,
which is thirty days.

The current asset investments relate to deposit accounts which have original maturities of greater than 3
months. Of these all investments mature within one year from the year end date. The current asset
investments are measured at cost with gains and of losses recognised in the Statement of Financial Activity.

17. CREDITORS 2019 2018
Amounts falling due within one year € €
Group
Trade creditors 9,312,311 16,235,518
Taxation 18,015 17,109
Other creditors 14,292 11,792
Accruals 47,251 93,164

9,391,869 16,357,583

2019 2018
€ €

Company
Trade creditors 9,252,935 16,096,415
Amounts owed to group companies (note 23) 31,634 56,613
Taxation {note 19) 18,015 17,109
Other creditors 14,292 11,792
Accruals 34,948 81,155

9,351,824 16,263,084

The repayment terms of trade creditors vary as required by creditors. This balance includes amounts payable
to National University of Ireland Galway (€9,286,863, see note 23 below). No interest is payable on trade
creditors.

Tax and social insurance are subject to the terms of the relevant legislation. No interest was due at the
financial year end date.

Other amounts included within creditors not covered by specific note disclosures are unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand.
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

18.

19.

20.

CREDITORS 2019 2018

Group and Company € €

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Trade creditots: between one and five years - 6,700,000
- 6,700,000

The repayment terms of trade creditors vary as required by creditors. This balance relates to amounts
payable to NUI Galway (see note 23 below). No interest is payable on trade creditors.

TAXATION 2019 2018
€ €

Group and Company

Creditors:

PAYE/PRSI 18,015 17,109

STATUS

The liability of the members is limited.

Every member of the company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of its being
wound up while they are members or within one year thereafter for the payment of the debts and liabilities of
the company contracted before they ceased to be members and the costs, charges and expenses of winding
up and for the adjustment of the rights of the coniribulors among themselves such amount as may be
required, not exceeding €2.
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Galway University Foundation Company Limited by Guarantee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2019

23.

24,

25.

28.

27.

28.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in income for the year is an amount of €145,020 (2018: €136,745) received in the form of donations
from board members or companies associated with board members.

NU! Galway: The Foundation is engaged in fund raising activities in support of National University of Ireland,
Galway. Galway University Foundation CLG is an independent body which is not controlied by NUI Galway.
During the year, the Foundation committed €3,252,317 (2018: €23,506,411) in support of the University,
During the year the Foundation received a contribution of €240,000 (2018: €240,000) from the University
towards certain operating expenses. At 30 June 2019, €9,286,863 (2018: €22,857,403) was outstanding
including amounts committed in prior years. Amounts paid and payable to NUI Galway are reflected in these
financial statements. As has been the practice, no remuneration has been paid to any staff member of NUI
Galway.

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

During the year ended 30 June 2011,Galway University Foundation CLG became a limited partner in the
Bank Of Ireland Seed and Early Stage Equity Fund 2009. The partnership is made up of the following entities;
Scribe Holdings Limited, Enterprise Ireland, The University of Limerick Foundation and Galway University
Foundation CLG. As at the 30 June 2019, Galway University Foundation CLG has subscribed €805,867
{2018: €885,554) and is committed to subscribe a further €94,133 (2018: €114,446) to the said partnership,
bringing the total commitment to €1,000,000, which equates to 3.125% (2018: 3.125%) of the total investment
value. The remaining payments from the designated reserves will be over a number of years; the exact timing
of which has not yet been determined

Similarly, on 4 December 2017, the Foundation became a limited partner in the Medtech Accelerator Fund 1
Limited Partnership. During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Foundation contributed €225,000 (2018:
€225,000) to that fund out of a total commitment of €450,000. This has left a remaining commitment at year
end of nil (2018: €225,000).

CONTROLLING INTEREST
In the opinion of the directors, there is no one identifiable controlling party of the group.
EVENTS AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

On October 1st 2019, the Foundation concluded an agreement with NUI Galway relating to the transfer of
certain business functions and related employees from the Foundation to the University in order to strengthen
linkages between the University and its alumni and development functions. The Foundation has undertaken
to make a donation of €400,000 in support of the University's development activities by 30th December 2019.
The Foundation will continue to receive donations in support of NUI Galway and to act as the custodian of
such donor funds.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group 2019 2018
€ €
Cash and bank balances 4,636,573 5,713,367
Company 2019 2018
€ €
Cash and bank balances 3,876,925 4,928,331

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 05 November
2019,
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Té gnéithe den chaiteachas Caipitinil agus Reatha araon arna dtuairiscifi sna Raitis Airgeadais seo
maoinithe faol cheann amhain né nios mé de na clair seo a leanas arna riaradh ag an UAO.

Elements of both Capital and Recurrent expenditure reported in these Financial Statements have been funded under one
or more of the following programmes administered by the HEA

Regional Assembly ) Axtlsris s rk Ok
EUROPEAN UNION
STRUCTURAL FLHDS

" 5 .'
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Funded under PRTLI
Administered bv the HEA
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Raiteas Dualgas

Ceanglaitear ar an Ollscoil Acht na nOllscoileanna 1997 a chomhlionadh agus na cuntais go léir
is cui agus is gnach ar airgead a gheobhaidh an Ollscoil né a chaithfidh sf a choime4d san fhoirm
a cheangléidh an comhaonti um Chomhchuibhit Raiteas Airgeadais ama ghlacadh ag gach
Ollscoil Eireannach. Nuair a bheidh na cuntais sin 4 n-ullmht aici, ceanglofar na nithe seo a
leanas ar an Ollscoil:

* Beartais chuntasaiochta chui a roghni a bheidh de réir an chomhaontaithe maidir le
Comhchuibhriu Raiteas Airgeadais agus iad a chur i bhfeidhm go leantinach;

* Breithitnais agus meastachain a dhéanamh at4 réastnach agus ciallmhar;

* Na rditis airgeadais a ullmhi ar bhonn gnéthais leantaigh ach amhain mura cuf an bonn
sin.

Té an Ollscoil freagrach as leabhair chuntais chui a choimead a nochtann ag am ar bith staid
airgeadais na hOllscoile agus a chumasaionn di a chinntit go n-ullmhaitear a raitis airgeadais de
réir an chomhaontaithe um Chomhchuibhii Raiteas Airgeadais agus a chinntii go bhfuil a raitis
airgeadais ag comhlionadh Acht na nOllscoileanna, 1997. T4 an Ollscoil freagrach freisin as
socmhainni ar fad na hOllscoile faoina rialt oibriochtitil a chosaint agus da bhri sin as céimeanna
réasinta a ghlacadh chun calaois and neamhrialtachtai eile a chosc agus a bhrath.

Ullmhofar sraith eile raitis airgeadais le comhlionadh agus beidh siad de réir prionsabail
chuntasafochta a nglactar leo go coitianta in Eirinn agus sa Riocht Aontaithe cé go n-ullmhaitear
na raitis airgeadais seo don Udaras um Ard-Oideachas de réir an chomhaontaithe maidir le
Combhchuibhrit Réiteas Airgeadais.

Ullmhaiodh na réitis airgeadais de réir théarmai an raitis airgeadais roimhe seo agus rinne
KPMG, iniichéiri bainistiochta na hOllscoile, initichadh orthu.

Ba choir a thabhairt faoi deara gurb é an tArd-Reachtaire Cuntas agus Ciste initichdir reachtiil
na hOllscoile.

Ar son Udaras na hOllscoile

(bt\)j‘\)k

19 Marta 2020
Data

Uachtaran
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Tuarascail an Sparanai

Tuairisc an Sparanai ar Raitis Airgeadais 'Chomhchuibhithe' an Udarais um
Ard-Oideachas

Réamhra

Ullmhaitear na raitis airgeadais a ghabhann leis seo faoi pholasaithe agus prionsabail chuntasaiochta
‘Chomhchuibhithe UAQ’ at aontaithe ag an carnail agus a léirionn gniomhaiochtai teagaisc, taighde agus
seirbhise gaolmhara na hOliscoile. T dtuarascdil iniichta sheachtraigh de chuid KPMG ar leathanaigh 6-7
(Gaeilge) agus 32-33 (Béarla), cléraitear a dtuairim gur ullmhaiodh na réitis mar is ceart de réir na bpolasaithe
sin,

Léargas

Ta athas ar an Ollscoil a bheith in ann a thuairisciu aris go raibh barrachas oibriichain ann don bhliain dar
crioch 30 Mean Fémbhair 2019 arb ionann ¢ agus €1.6m (2018: €0.4m). T4 bainistiocht éifeachtach & déanamh
ag an Ollscoil i geénai ar a cuid gndthai agus rioscai gaolmhara i bhfianaise a laghad maoinithe ata curtha ar
fail ag an Rialtas. T4 geilleagar na hEireann faoi bhagairt i gconai 6n tionchar a d’fhéadfadh a bheith ag imeacht
na Breataine 6n AE, agus d’fhéadfadh an Ollscoil a bheith thios leis na drochthionchair airgeadais ndisitnta
sin.

Mar a Iéiritear i réamh-mheastach4in dhéimeagrafacha, is & an claonadh ata ann lion nios mé scoliri
dara leibhéal a bheith ag tabhairt faoi scridi na hardteistiméireachta agus méaduithe sa sciar dibh sin
a théann ar aghaidh chuig oideachas triti leibhéal. Léiritear na treochtai seo sna cuntais faoi iamh mar
ata sonraithe thios faoi ‘Torthai Oibritichain’. T4 cuma dhearfach ar an ngeilleagar i gconai agus t4
na tuairiscedin thioscacha slaintinil agus t4 an lion is u daoine le deich mbliana anuas ar an ‘tabhall
beo’ (ag éileamh cinamh dithostaiochta).

Agus plean straitéiseach uaillmhianach na hOliscoile do na cuig bliana amach romhainn 4 seoladh
aici, t4 an bhéim ata ar shruthanna ioncaim neamhstait ag dul i méid. Is & an sciar is tibhachtai den
chatagéir sin tailli mac 1éinn iarchéime agus neamh-AE, chomh maith le 16istin ar ardchaighdeéan do
mhic 1éinn ar an gcampas, agus an l6istin sin a ligean amach ar cios sa samhradh.

Torthai Oibriichdin

Bhi r6l nach beag ag an méadi a thdinig ar ioncam ¢ thailli agus ag an srian a coinniodh ar chostais sa
bharrachas a tuairisciodh don bhliain, arb ionann é agus €1.6m. Thainig ardii €6m ar ioncam 6 thailli mar
thoradh ar an ardu a thainig ar lion na mac 1éinn, ar thailli nios airde agus chomh maith leis sin ar an athri a
thainig ar an meascén mac Iéinn, ar athrd ¢ sin a bhfuil tuilleadh ioncaim i bhfoirm deontais én Rialtas tagtha
as trid an gcoéras maoinithe ‘RGAM’. T4 ardii €16m tagtha ar chostais foirne i rith na bliana a bhuiochas le
nios mo Taighde ar Conradh, ciorruithe pa a bheith tugtha ar ais, incriminti bliantila, tionchair achtiireachta
ar phinsin agus nios mé comhaltai foirne.

Leachtacht

Léirid ar an manla gné ina bhfuil an Ollscoil ag feidhmiu is ea a laidre is atd an leibhéal leachtachta ata ar
taispedint sa Rditeas ar an Staid Airgeadais, agus go leor de chroi-mhaoiniti na hOllscoile ‘tis-ualaithe’. Udar
imni amhdin san earndil tri chéile is ea an t-iarmhéid ata dlite én Rialtas maidir le pinsin mar atd le feiceail sa
mhéadi atd tagtha ar an bhfigitr don fhéichitinai pinsinin 2019 (Néta 21) ata ardaithe g0 €7.4m (2018: €2.8m).
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Tuarascail an Sparanai o fean

Airgead Tirim & Infheistiochtai

Cheadaigh an Ollscoil straitéis infheistiochta nua i rith na bliana, agus ceapadh comhairleoiri infheistiochta
agus bainisteoiri infheistiochta nua. Ba ag deireadh na bliana airgeadais a bhi aistrio fisicigil cisti ag tarli,
agus an toradh a bhi air sin nd go raibh iarmhéid airgid thirim nios airde ann na mar a bhionn go hiondail.
Dhd mhi roimh dheireadh na bliana, bhi suim arb ionann i agus €50m & hinfheistii in ionstraimi
meantéarmacha agus fadtéarmacha. T4 €10m eile 4 choinnesil i bhfoirm airgead tirim faoi mhaoirseacht ar
mbainisteoiri infheistiochta.

Forbairti Caipitil Suntasacha

Osclaiodh Baile an Chiorbhui i mi Mhean Fémhair 2018, an t-aras cénaithe nua do mhic 1éinn a bhfuil 429
leaba ann. Bhi ardi) suntasach ar ioncam ciosa na hOllscoile i rith na bliana mar thoradh air. Usaidtear an t-
ioncam sin chun an t-is ar an jasacht 6n mBanc Eorpach Infheistiochta (EIB) a foc, agus chun aisiocaiochtai
a dhéanambh ina leith, a mbeidh an chéad aisioc caipitil dlite i mi Iiil 2020, Tharraingiomar anuas €21m i mi
an Mheithimh 2019, arb é an dara trainse den iasacht EIB ¢, Déanfaidh sé sin éascaiocht ar fhorbairt agus ar
thégail Ciorbhui I1 (674 leaba), ar forbairt € a fuair cead pleanala i rith na bliana.

D’¢irigh leis an Oliscoil €15m a fhéil chun an tlonad Leabharlainne a fhorbairt, ar spas leabharlainne as an
nua € don aonil haois is fiche. Fuarthas an maoinii mar thoradh ar thairiscint iomaioch a rinneadh ar an
gCiste Tionscnaimh Straitéisigh atd faoi scath an Udarais um Ard-Oideachas (HESIF). Beidh infheistiocht 6
chisti Daonchairdis agus 6 chisti Ollscoile ag teastiil sna blianta atd amach romhainn chun an tionscadal a
thabhairt chun criche.

Thug an Ollscail faoi thionscadal chomh maith chun céras nua a chur i bhfeidhm do thaifid na mac léinn, ar
coras € ata scor bliain d’aois, agus ag deireadh 2019 cuirfimid clabhstr le hinfheistiocht riachtanach a bhi le
déanamh againn i bhfoirgneamh stairiil agus iomraiteach na Cearnoige.

Conclaid

Biodh is go bhfuil raon diishlan éagsuil le sérit ag an Ollscoil, t4 rath leantinach na hOllscoile cinntithe de
thairbhe na bhfoime diograiseacha até aici a thugann na cusp6iri straitéiseacha, ardchaighdesin teagaisc agus
taighde, agus seirbhisi gairmiula i gcrich gach 14.

v/&c;_.c?_wa

Sharon Bailey, FCCA, AITI, MSc Mgmt
Sparinai / Bursar

Dita % 03 20
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Buachphointi Airgeadais
Toncam Reatha 2018-2019
e  Deontais Stait €53m 20%

e Taillina Macléinn  €723m  46%

Deontais Taighde €71m 26%

¢  Joncaim Eile €21m 8%

T4 ioncam iomldn na bliana 11% nios mé na an t-ioncam a tuairisciodh anuraidh.
Caiteachas Reatha 2018-2019

o Acaddla/Taighde €209m 78%

¢ Foirgnimh €28.8m 11%
Riarachan €19.5m 7%
¢ Seirbhisi Macléinn ~ €7m 3%
¢ FEile €2.7m 1%

Thainig méada de 11% ar an geaiteachas iomlén.

Caiteachas Caipitil 2018-2019
¢ Foirgnimh €10.9m 48%

¢ Trealamh €11.3m 52%

Léirionn na raitis airgeadais a ndearnadh initichadh orthu caiteachas caipitil de €21.7m i rith na bliana, a
mhiondealaitear ina €10.4 m ar fhoirgnimh agus €11.3m ar threalamh.

Deontais Caipitil 2018-2019
o UAO €0.5m 4%
¢ Neambhspléach €11.5m  96%

€12m a cuireadh chun sochair le linn na bliana agus miondealaitear thuas foinsi na suime sin,
5
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TUARASCAIL INITUCHORA NEAMHSPLEACH CHUIG UDARAS NA hOLLSCOILE AR
RAITIS MHAOGINIUCHAIN UAO de CHUID OLLSCOIL na hEIREANN, GAILLIMH

1. Tuarascdil maidir le hinitichadh ar na Raitis Mhaoinitichain
Tuairim

Ta miuchadh déanta againn ar Raitis Mhaoinitichdin UAO (“Raitis Mhaoinitichain”) Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh (‘an
Ollscoil’) don bhliain dar crioch 30 Mean Fémhair 2019 a gcuimsitear leo an Cuntas Ioncaim agus Caiteachais, an Clar
Combhardaithe, an Raiteas Sreabhaidh Airgid agus na nétai gaolmhara. Rinneadh na Raitis Mhaoininchain seo a ullmh
ar na ctiseanna a leagtar amach sa réiteas faoi na polasaithe cuntasajochta agus de réir chomhaontti Chomhchuibhii na
gCuntas, ama ghlacadh ag Ollscoileanna na hEireann, agus na polasaithe cuntasaiochta ama leagan amach ar leathanaigh
8 go 10.

Is ¢ ar diuairim go bhfuil na Raitis Mhaoiniuchdin ullmhaithe go cui, i ngach sli abhartha, de réir na bpolasaithe
cuntasaiochta mar a leagtar amach iad ar leathanaigh 8 go 10, a cuireadh le chéile chun feidhm a thabhairt don chomhaontéi
is deireanai maidir le Comhchuibhiti na gCuntas.

Buniis na tuairime

Rinneamar an t-initchadh i gcomhréir leis na Caighdeain Idirnaisiunta Initichdireachta (Eire) (ISAs (Eire)) agus leis an
dli ata infheidhme. T4 cur sios breise ar 4r bhfreagrachtai faoi na caighdeain sin sa chuid den tuarascéil a bhaineann le
Freagrachtai an Inilichdra maidir le hlnitichadh na Rditeas Maoinitichdin. Taimid neamhspledch ar an Ollscoil de réir
na gceanglas eitice atd dbhartha maidir lenér n-iniachadh ar Raitis Mhaoinitchain in Eirinn, lena n-airitear an Caighdedn
Eiticitil a deisigh Udards na hEircann um Maoirseacht Initichdireachta agus Cuntasaiochta (IAASA), agus
chomhlionamar 4r bhfreagrachtai eiticitila eile de réir na gceanglas seo.

Creidimid go bhfuil an thianaise initichta ata faighte againn déthanach agus oiritinach chun buntis a thabhairt dar dtuairim,
Nil aon rud againn le tuairiscia ar ghnéthas leantach

Ni mér diinn a thuairiscii ma tathar tar éis a chinneadh go bhfuil dsaid an ghnéthais leantaigh cuntasaiochta michui né
mé ta neamhchinnteacht abhartha nar nochtadh a d’fhéadfadh amhras a tharraingt ar usaid an ghnéthais sin do thréimhse
dha mhi dhéag ar a laghad 6 dhéta faofa na Réiteas Maoinitichain. Nil aon rud againn le tuairisciti ina leith seo.

Faisnéis eile

T4 an Ollscol freagrach as an bhfaisnéis eile a chuirtear i lathair sa Tuarascéil Bhliantuil chomh maith leis na Raitis
Mhaoinituchain. Ar an bhfaisnéis eile ta an fhaisnéis a iritear i dtuarascail an Sparénai agus na priomhphointi airgeadais.
Nil na Raitis Mhaoinitichdin né tuarascail 4r n-initichéra ina dtaobh ina geuid den fhaisnéis eile. Ni chuimsionn ar dtuairim
1leith na Rditeas Maoinitichéin an fhaisnéis eile agus, d4 réir sin, ni chuirimid in inl aon tuairim iniGchta na, ach amhain
sna casanna a luaitear go sonrach thios, aon choncliid dhearbhaithe de shaghas ar bith maidir leis an bhfaisnéis sin Is { an
fhreagracht at orainn an t-eolas eile a léamh agus, ar an geaoi sin, an t-eolas atd ann a mheas le fail amach, bunaithe ar ar
saothar initichta i dtaca le Raitis Mhaoinitichdin de, an bhfuil mishonrti 4bhartha san eolas n6 an bhfuil neamhréir i geeist
leis na Raitis Mhaoinitichéin n6 le heolas 4r n-initichta. Bunaithe ar an saothar sin amhéin nior aithniomar aon mhishonrd
dbhartha san eolas eile.

Tuairimi maidir le nithe eile ar a gcaithfimid tuairiscit faoi théarmai 4r rannphairtiochta

Fuaireamar gach faisnéis agus gach miniii a mheasamar a raibh gé leo chun an t-iniichadh a dhéanamh.
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T4 na Réitis Mhaoiniichéin ag teacht leis na taifid chuntasaiochta agus, dar linn, t4 taifid chuntasajochta leordh6thanacha
coinnithe ag an Ollscoil

TUARASCAIL INIUCHORA NEAMHSPLEACH CHUIG UDARAS NA HOLLSCOILE AR RAITIS MHAOINIUCHAIN U40
DE CHUID OLLSCOIL NA HEIREANN, GAILLIMH ar lean

Abhair ar a gcaithfimid tuairiscia tri eisceacht

I dtaca lenar n-iniichadh ar na Raitis Mhaoinituchdin, éilionn ISAs (Eire) go Iéimid an fhaisnéis eile agus, ag an am
céanna, a mheas an bhiuil an thaisnéis sin neamhréireach go habhartha leis na Raitis Mhaoinitich4in n6 leis an bhfaisnéis
a fuarthas 6n obair initichta a rinneamar, nd is cosiil a bheith mishonraithe go abhartha.

Eilionn ISAs (Eire) nach mér dinn a thuairiscit duit méas rud ¢, bunaithe ar an eolas a fuaireamar le linn 4r n-infichta,
go bhfuil eolas faighte againn sa tuarascail bhliantiil ina bhiuil neamhréireacht dbhartha leis an eolas sin né leis na Raitis
Mhaoinitich4in, mirditeas abhartha firici, né atd mithreorach ar bhealach eile. Nil aon rud againn le tuairiscig ina leith
s€0.

2, Freagrachtai faoi seach agus srianta ar vsaid
Freagrachtai stiirthéiri as na Raitis Mhaoinitichdin

Mar a mhinitear ar bhealach nios jomlédine sa Raiteas Freagrachta a leagtar amach ar leathanach 2, caithfidh an Ollscoil
Acht na nOllscoileanna, 1997 a chomhlionadh agus gach cuntas ceart ar airgead a fhaightear agus a chaitear a choimead
san fhoirm a theastéidh 6n gcomhaontti maidir le Comhchuibhrivi Cuntas Airgeadais ama ghlacadh ag gach Ollscoil in
Eirinn.

Agus na Raitis Mhaoinitichdin 4 n-ullmhd, t4 an Ollscoil freagrach as a chumas leantint ar aghaidh mar ghnéthas
leantinach, ag nochtadh, mar is infheidhme, nithe a bhaineann le gnéthas leantinach agus 1isdid a bhaint as an ngnéthas
leantach cuntasaiochta mura bhfuil sé i geeist ag Udaras na nOllscoile an Ollscoil a leachti né deireadh a chur le
hoibriochtai, né gan aon rogha réalaioch a bheith acu ach ¢ sin a dhéanambh.

Freagrachtai an iniichéra maidir le hiniichadh ar na Raitis Mhaoinidichdin

Is iad na cuspéiri atd againn dearbhu réastinta a fhail maidir le cibé an bhfuil na Raitis Mhaoinitichéin ina n-ioml4ine saor
6 mhiraiteas abhartha, cibé acu mar gheall ar chalaois n6 ar earréid, agus tuarascdil initichora a eisidint ina n-airftear ar
dtuairim. Is éard ¢ dearbhii réasunta dearbhii ar ardleibhéal, ach ni rathaiocht & go bhfaighidh iniachadh a dhéantar de réir
ISAs (Eire) miriteas dbhartha i gednai nuair is ann do. Is féidir le mirditis teacht chun cinn de bharr calaoise né earrdide
agus meastar iad a bheith dbhartha mds rud é go bhféadfadh siad go réasunach, astu féin n6 tri chéile, tionchar a bheith

acu ar chinnti eacnamaiocha na n-iisideoiri a dhéantar ar bhonn na Raiteas Maoinitichéin seo.

Tugtar cur sios nios iomldine ar 4r bhfreagrachtai ar laithredn gréasain an JAASA ag
https://www.iaasa.ie/zetmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8 -
a98202dc9¢3a/Description_of auditors responsiblities for audit.pdf

Cuspéir ar n-oibre inivichta agus ¢¢ dé a bhfuilimid freagrach

Ta an tuarascdil seo 4 déanamh chuig Udaras na nOllscoile, agus chuige amhain, mar chomhlacht, de réir théarmai &r
rannphairtiochta. Rinneadh ar geuid oibre initichéireachta chun go bhféadfaimis na nithe sin a cheanglaitear orainn a lua
le hUdaras na hOllscoile i dtuarascéil initichéra a lua leis, agus chun na criche sin amhdin. A mhéad a cheadaftear in aon
chor ¢ leis an dlf, ni ghlacaimid n4 ni ghabhaimid chugainn féin freagracht d’aon duine seachas don Oliscoil agus d’Udaras
na hOllscoile, mar chomhlacht, as ucht ar n-oibre initichta, as ucht na tuarascala seo nd as ucht na dtuairimi a bhiuilimid

tar éis teacht orthu.

Cliona Mullen — 27 Marta 2020
do KPMG agus thar ceann KPMG
Cuntaséiri Cairte, Dockgate, Béthar na nDugann, Gaillimh.
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Raiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntasaiochta

A

Raiitis Airgeadais

Tugann na rditis airgeadais 1éiriu ar theagasc, taighde agus gniomhaiochtai seirbhise at bainteach
leis an Ollscoil. Déantar raitis airgeadais maidir le Ciste Pinsean na hOllscoile agus gniomhaiochtai
coimhdeacha neamhspléacha airgeadais a chur i lathair astu féin.

Coinbhinsiin Cuntasaiochta

Ullmhaitear na Raitis Airgeadais facin gecoinbhinsiin costais stairitil, ama mhionathri chun
athluachail ar thalamh agus ar fhoirgnimh a chur san direamh. Cuirtear i lathair iad de téir an
chomhaontaithe reatha um Chomhchuibhiii Réiteas Airgeadais arna ghlacadh le haghaidh gach
Ollscoile Eircannai. T4 na beartais chuntasaiochta seo curtha le chéile chun feidhm a thabhairt
don chomhréiteach ar an gcomhaontti réitis airgeadais.

Ni chomhlionann an comhaontas um Chomhchuibhit Raiteas Airgeadais an cleachtas cuntasaiochta

a bhfuil glacadh leis (GAAP). Déantar rditis airgeadais chomhdhliite a chomhlionann GAAP a
ullmhu ar leithligh.

Deontais Stiit i gcomhair Caiteachas Reatha

Airitear deontais reatha ar bhunds fabhruithe. T4 an Deontas Reatha a usdidiear 1 gcomhair
socmhainni dochta a cheannach aistrithe go dti an ciilchiste ginearalta.

Deontais i gcomhair Caiteachas Caipitivil

Airitear sna réitis airgeadais na deontais stdit ata ccadaithe ag an UAQ do chaiteachas caipitinil den
tréimhse de réir an méid airgid a fritheadh.

Déantar deontais chaipitil eile a fhabhra nuair até an tionscadal caipitil lena mbaineann siad tugtha
chun criche né sa mhéid an airgid faighte, ag brath ar théarmai agus choinniollacha a bhaineann leis
an togra.

Toncam 6 Thailli agus 6 Us

Tabharfar cuntas ar ioncam t4illi (tobhaigh mac 1éinn a bheidh infhaighte san direamh) ar bhonn
fabhraithe agus déanfar tuairisc ar an méid glan de lascaini ar an line d’ioncam t4illi sa chuntas

ioncaim agus caiteachais.

Taifeadtar ioncam 6 s ar bhonn fabhraithe sa tréimhse lena mbaineann sé.
Leithdhailti Ceadaithe

Ta an cuntas ioncam agus caiteachas ullmhaithe ar bhunvs fabhruithe ¢é is moite de na heisceachtai
seo a leanas:

(1)  Caiteachas neamhpha na ranna acadiila agus ranna seirbhisi éagsula.
(i)  Trealamh roinne agus mionoibreacha.
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Raiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntasaiochta, ar lean
Leithdhailti Ceadaithe, ar lean

Sna cdsanna seo, aireofar caiteachas ar bhonn buiséad formheasta agus tabharfar ar aghaidh
iarmhéideanna inmheanacha sa Chlir Comhardaithe faoi Shocmhainni Reatha né faoi Dhliteanais,
de réir mar is iomchui.

G Séemhainni Dochta agus Dimheas

Luaitear costas stairitiil le gach s6cmhainn seasta seachas Talamh agus Foirgnimh. Rinneadh
foirgnimh a bhi criochnaithe faoin 30 Mean Fémhair 1998 a athluachail go hinmheanach, ina gceann
agus ina gceann, ag luach reatha athsholathair an data sin ldide an muirear gaolmhar dimheasa,
Léiritear foirgnimh a tégadh i rith na bliana ag a gcostas stairitil agus toimhditear go mbeidh saol
tUsdideach 50 bliain acu. Rinneadh talamh a athluachail chomh maith ag an luach reatha 0séide amhail
an 30 Mean Fombhair 1998.

Tugtar cuntas ar an mbunchostas ar fhoirgnimh até 4 dt6gdil, bunaithe ar luach theastas na n-ailtiri
agus ar chostais dhireacha cile a thabhéfar go deireadh na bliana airgeadais. Ni dhimheastar iad go
dti go n-tisdidtear iad.

Discriobhtar trealamh a bhfuil costas nios It nd €10,000 air go dti an cuntas ioncaim agus caiteachais
do bhliain a cheannaithe.

Mar seo a leanas ata saolré fhonta na sécmhainni seasta ar faoina treoir a rinneadh dimheas a riomh
de réir méid cothrom: -

Foirgnimbh;: 50 bliain
Trealamh Riomhaireachta: 3 bliana
Trealamh Eile 5 bliana

Nil dimheas i geeist i geds talun

Déantar athbhreithnit ar bhearniachan sécmhainne seasta maé léirionn imeachtai né athruithe cuinsi
go bhféadfadh sé nach mbeidh méid iasachta na sécmhainne seasta in-aisghabhéla.

H  Cilchiste Ginearalta

Léirionn an Cilchiste Ginearélta luach an chistitichan at4 iarrtha i gcomhair réamhchiiraim caipiteal,
tar €is amuichtha i gcombhréir le dimheas, maraon le fuilleach ar ghniomhaiochta seirbhise
coimhdeacha.

I Deontais Thaighde agus Thionscadail

Taispedintear caiteachas taighde conartha glan 6 ranniocajocht go costais indireacha. Airitear ioncam
6 dheontais thaighde chonartha sa Chuntas Toncam agus Caiteachas de réir costas an chaiteachais a
bhain leis. Airitear ranniocaiocht taighde conartha go costais indireacha na hOllscoile faoi Joncam
Eile. Airitear sécmhainni dochta maoinithe tri Dheontais Taighde faoi ‘Séemhainni Dochta’ sa Chlar
Chombardaithe
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Raiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntasaiochta, ar lean

J

Airgeadrai Coigriche

Aistritear ioncam agus caiteachas ainmnithe in airgeadrai coigriche de réir na ratai malairte atd i réim
ar dhétai na hidirbheartaiochta. Aistritear sécmhainni agus dliteanais aimmnithe in airgeadrai
coigriche go Euro de réir na ratai malairte atd i réim ar dhata an Chlair Chombhardaithe. Déilediltear
le haon bhrabuis né caillteanais a bhionn ann dé thoradh seo taobh istigh den chuntas ioncam.

Céanachas
Nil aon solathairti déanta do chanachas mar go bhfuil stadas saor 6 chain ag an Ollscoil.
Seirbhisi Coimhdeacha

Is seirbhisi coimhdeacha na seirbhisi (nach bhfuil irithe faoi ghno comhlachta) a chuirtear ar fail ar
an gcampas ar bhunus costas téarnamh agus ata pleanailte le briseadh cothrom sa medntéarmach.
Airitear ioncam infheistiochta ar an chulchiste forbartha bonneagar faoin teideal seo freisin.
Aistritear an glanthoradh ar na gniomhaiochtai seo go dti an Cuntas Culchiste Ginearjlta.

Pinsin

Ta na scéimeanna pinsean seo a leanas le sochar sainithe 4 reachtail ag an Ollscoil: Comhscéim
Pinsean (JPS n6 ‘Scéim Mhaoinithe’) agus an ‘Scéim Eiseamldireach Pinsean’ (MPS né Scéim
Eiseamléireach) agus Scéim Aonair Pinsin na Seirbhise Poibli. (Scéim Aonair). Déantar bunphinsin
scoir na mball a chistiu tri ranniocaiochtai ag ratai réamhchinnte de pha inphinsin. Gearrtar arduithe
1 mbunphinsin scoir ar chuntas Ioncaim agus Caiteachais na hOllscoile. Gearrtar ranniocaiochtai
fostoiri chuig na scéimeanna le sochar sainithe ar chuntas ioncaim agus caiteachais na hOllscoile i
nddil le costais tuarastail agus pa fostaithe. Déantar staid sreafa airgid ghlain an d4 scéim le sochar
sainithe le chéile a direamh mar shécmhainn né mar dhliteanas mar is cuj agus ioctar na cisti le nd
carntha mar airgead dlite 6 Stat na hEireann. T4 cur sios ar shreabhadh airgid an d4 scéim sna nétai
a ghabhann leis na cuntais.

T éis pinsin PRSA ar fail freisin do chombhaltai foime nach bhfuil inchéilithe le claru ar na
scéimeanna le sochar sainithe. T4 an 4is riartha ag cuideachta 4rachais trid pairti.

Stoc

Ussidtear costas né an luach readtha glan, pé diobh is 10, agus is earrai inchaite saotharlainne,
stdiseandireacht agus dbhair fhoirgnimh an chuid is mé daoibh.

Infheistiochtai

Sonraitear infheistiochtai ar a gcostas stairitil iide foralacha bearnuchdin, mas ann doibh. Airitear
orthu sin iarmhéideanna airgid a shealbhaitear laistigh de phunanna infheistiochta.
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Ioncam agus Caiteachas | Income and Expenditure

Ioncam | Income

Deontais Stait  State Grants
Tailli na Mac Léinn  Student Fees
Toncaim Eile  Other Income

Deontais Taighde agus Tionscnaimh Research Grants and Projects

Ilomlan Total

Caiteachas | Expenditure

Ranndga Acadilla Aeademic Departments

Seirbhisi Acadtla Academic Services

Foirgnimh  Premives

Tograi Forrgniochta agus Trealaimh Building and Equipping Projects
Riarachan _Adwinistration

Costais Eile Oideachais Genera! Educational Expenditure

Aiseanna agus Conléisti Facilities and Ameities

Costais lighnéitheacha AMiscellaneons Expenditure

Deontais Taighde agus Tionscnaimh  Research Grants and Projects

Iomlan Total/

Breis ar ghniomhaiochtai roimh dhiscriobh Cuilchisti
Deontais Caipitil, Seirbhisi Coimhdeacha agus Dimheas
Surplus on activities before amortisation of Capital Reserves and Grants,
Ancilliary services and Depreciation
Dimheas Depreciation
Gluaiseacht sa Chulchiste Gineardlta General Reserve Movement

Breis don Bhliain Surplus for year

Pages 11 and 12 are included in duplicate as
signature had to be performed remotely in the
current circumstance

Nota

Noze

ko

o Co N

—
<

1
12

13

14
15

2019

€000

53,365
123,083
21,128

197,576

71,045

268,621

107,794
20,665
20,492

8,357
19,553
7,045
9,323
2,728

195,957

71,045

267,002

1,619

(20,071)
20,071

1,619

2018
Restated
(Note 28)
€°000

45,000
116,625
17,049

178,674

61,002

239,676

97,285
20,077
19,496
3,273
19,804
6,705
9,723
1,940

178,303

61,002

239,305

371

(17,064)
17,064

371

Is cuid de na cuntais seo an Raiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntais, an Raiteas facin Sreabhadh Airgid agus N6tai 1 go 28.
The statement of Acconnting Policies, Cash Flow Statement and Notes 1 to 28 form part of these Acconnts

(b!«)jjl\

Cuntasaiochta/Uachtaran  Chief Offiver/ President

11

Otifigeach

Meabhrdnai Regisirar
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Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

Toncam agus Caiteachas | Income and Expenditure

Ioncam | Income

Deontais Stait Statr Grangs
TAilli na Mac Léinn  Studens Fees
Ioncaim Eile Other Incore

Deontais Taighde agus Tionscnaimh Research Grants and Projects

Iomlin Zotal

Caiteachas | Expenditure

Ranndga Acadila _deedemic Departments

Seirbhisi Acadlla _4cademic Services

Foirgnimh  Premsives

Tograi Foirgniochta agus Trealaimh Building and Equspping Projects
Riarachén Adwiristration

Costais Eile Oideachais General Educational Espenditure

Aiseanna agus Conléistf Fadibties and Amensties

Costais Ilghnéitheacha Misce/laneous Excpendsture

Deontais Taighde agus Tionscnaimh  Research Grants and Projects

Iomldn Total

Breis ar ghniomhaiochtai roimh dhiscriobh Ctilchisti
Deontais Caipitil, Seirbhisi Coimhdeacha agus Dimheas
Surplus on activities before amortisation of Capital Reserves and Granis,
Auncilliary servives and Depreciation
Dimheas Deprediation
Gluaiseacht sa Chillchiste Ginearalta General Reserve Mosement

Breis don Bhliain Surpius for year

Néta

Note

X3

13

14
15

2019

€°000

53,365
123,083
21,128

197,576

71,045

268,621

107,794
20,665
20,492

8,357
19,553
7,045
9,323
2,728

195,957

71,045

267,002

1,619

(20,071)
20,071

L619

2018
Restated
(Note 28)
€000

45,000
116,625
17,049

178,674

61,002

239,676

97,285
20,077
19,496
3,273
19,804
6,705
9,723
1,940

178,303

61,002

239,305

371

(17,064)
17,064

3N

Is cuid de na cuntais seo an Réiteas ar Pholasaithe Cuntais, an Raiteas faoin Sreabhadh Airgid agus Nétaf 1 go 28.
The statement of Accounting Policies, Cash Flow Statement and Notes 1 10 28 Jorm part of these Acconnts

?ﬂi@o_ld s

Meabhréinal Registrar

Sinia - -
Oifigeach Cuntasaiochta/Uachtardn  Chief Officer/ President
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Cliar Comhardaithe | Balance Sheet

Séemhainni Dochta Fixed Assets
Infheistiochtai Iovestnents

Sécmbainni Reatha Cuoent Assets
Fuilligh sna Bainc agus Airgead Bank Batances and Cash

Feichiunaithe agus Réamhiocaiochtai Debtors and Prepayments
Stoc Stock

Dliteanais Reatha Curent Lizbilities

Creiditnaithe agus Caiteachas Fabhraithe nios It na bliain amhain Crediters and
Acerwed Excpenditure due in less than one yoar

(Dliteanais)/Séchmainni Reatha Glan Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets

Creiditinaithe nios mé na bliain amhain Creditors due in more than one year

Sécmhbainni Iomlana Glan 7Total Net Assets

Arbh iad seo a bhfoinsi Represented by

Ciulchiste Ginearilta Genera! Reserve

Culchiste Reatha Current Reserve

Nota
Note

16
25

17

19

22

2019
€000

448,729
68,327

517,056

85,551
44,591
90

130,232

147,074

(16,842)
60,000

440,214

434,977

5,237

440,214

2018
€000

447,055
27,849

474,904

102,002
42,143
90

144,235

141,878

2,357
39,000

438,261

434,643

3,618

438,261

Is cuid de na cuntais seo an Rditeas ar Pholasaithe Cuntais, an Réiteas faoin Sreabhadh Airgid agus Noétai 1 go 28.

The Statement of Accounting Policies, Cash Flow Statensent and Notes from 1 1o 28 form part of these Accounts.

(DUJJJ\

Oifigeach Cuntasaiochta/Uachtardn  Chief Offcer/ President

Sinia

12

Meabhrénai Registnr




Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

%

Clir Comhardaithe | Balance Sheer

Néta 2019 2018
Noze €000 €000

Sécmhainni Dochta Fixed Assets 16 448,729 447,055
Infheistiochtal Invesaments 25 68,327 27,849

517,056 474,904

Sécmhainni Reatha Current Assets

Fuilligh sna Bainc agus Airgead Bank Balnoes and Cash 85,551 102,002
Feichitinaithe agus Réamhiocaiochtai Debrors and Prepayments 17 44,591 42,143
Stac Stock 90 90

130,232 144,235

Dliteanais Reatha Cuwrent Lisbilities

Creiditnaithe agus Caiteachas Fabhraithe nios hi nd bliain amhain Credstors and 18 147,074 141,878
Acerwsd Esqpenditure dste in less than one year

(Dliteanais)/Séchmainni Reatha Glan Ner Current (Liabilities)/Assets (16,842) 2,357
Creidiinaithe nios mé na bliain amhdin Creditors due i more than one  year 20 60,000 39,000
Sécmbainni Iomlina Glan Toral Net Assets 440,214 438,261

Arbh iad seo a bhfoinsi Represented by

Cilchiste Ginearslta General Reserve 19 434,977 434,643
Ciilchiste Reatha Current Reserve 22 5237 3,618
440,214 438,261

Is cuid de na cuntais seo an Rditeas ar Pholasaithe Cuntais, an Réiteas faoin Sreabhadh Airgid agus Nétai 1 go 28.
The Siaternent of Accounting Policies, Cash Flow Statement and Notes from 1 10 28 form part of these Acconnts.

Sinii | . %{@lﬁ( L.

Oifigeach éuntasfai(-)_chta/[jachtaré_n_C57¢Oﬁmr/Pm:i¢”t Meablirinai Registfar
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Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

*_&__—m‘___——__—__

Riiteas faoin Sreabhadh Airgid | Cask Flow Statement

Glan insreabhadh/(eis-sreabhadh) airgid é ghniomhaiochtai

oibrithe (Néta 23)

Net Cash inflow/((outflow) from Operating Activities (Note 23)

Toradh ar Infheistiocht agus Fénamh Airgeadais
Return on Investment and Servicing of Finance

Us faighte glan  Net Interest Received

Glan cis-sreabhadh airgid 6 ghniomhaiochtai infheistithe

Net Cash Outflow from Investment Activities

Caiteachas ar thionscnaimh chaipitil
Espenditure on Capital Projocts
Gluaiseacht Infheistiochtai Irvestment movement

Glan eis-sreabhadh airgid roimh mhaoinii

Net Cash outflow before Financing

Maoinia Financing

Aistriti 6 Ioncam agus Caiteachas

Trangfer from Income and Excpenditure

Deontais Caipitil UAQ  HEA Capital Grant

Deontais Caipitil Neamh UAO Non HEA Capital Grant
Faltais 6 Tasacht nua Proceeds from new Loan

Faltais ar dhiuscairt socmhainni dochta
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Glan insreabhadh airgid 6 mhaoinia
Net Cash inflow from financing

Glan eis-sreabhadh tar éis maoinia
Net outflow after financing

Laghdi ar airgead agus a chomhionann (Néta 24)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

2019 2019
€000 €000
(4,955)
32
(20,705)
(40,478)
(61,183)
(66,106)
8,357
513
19,785
21,000
49,655
(16,451)
(16,451)

13

2018 2018
€000 €000

1,427
117
(28,378)
78
(28,300)
(26,756)
3,273
2,308
17,533
23,114
(3,642)
(3,642)



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019
%

Notai faoi na cuntais | Notes to the Accounts

1. Deontais Stdit State Grants
2019 2018
€000 €°000
Deontais Reatha Rawrrent Grants 53,253 44,911
Cistin Sprioctha do Thionscnaimh Speisialta 39 16
Targeted Funding for Spevial Initiatives
Mion Oibreacha  Minor Works 73 73
53,365 45,000
2. Tdilli na Mac Léinn  Strudent Fees
Tailli Acadila _4cademic Fees 122,579 116,322
Tailli lighnéitheach Miscellaneons Fees 504 303
123,083 116,625
3. Ioncam Eile Other Income
Us Saothraithe Inzerest Reveivabie 32 117
Poist Mhaoinithe Funded Posts 2,148 1,776
Cios stl. Rent et 6,952 3,854
Deontais Taighde Researvh Grants 9,246 9,151
Toncam 6 Intheistiochtai, glan Nez Income from Investments 941 15
Ioncam Eile Other Income 1,809 2,136

21,128 17,049
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Ollscoil na hFireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

%

Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

4, Deontais Taighde agus Tionscnaimh Research Grants and Projects
2019 2018
Pqg N/Pha lomldn JTomlan
Pay Non Pay Total Total
€°000 €°000 €000 €000
Deontais Taighde Research Grants 35,791 34,781 70,572 60,410
Tionscnaimh Eile  Other Projects 123 350 473 592

35,914 35,131 71,045 61,002

S. Rannéga Acadila Academic Departments
Acadbil _Academic 82,680 82,680 73,099
Teicnitul  Technical 6,056 6,056 5,972
Riarachan agus Runaiocht 6,769 6,769 6,134
Administration and Secretarial
Deontais Rannoga Acadila 12,289 12,289 12,080

Academic Department Grants

95,505 12,289 107,794 97,285

6. Seirbhisi Acadiila Academic Services
An Leabharlann  Library 3,655 2,414 6,069 5,934
Réitigh agus Seirbhisi Faisnéise 3,012 2,873 5,885 5,554
Information Solutions & Services
Miocrascop Leictreon  Electron Microseapy Unit 24 24 46
Gaeilge Labhartha  Spoker Irish 4,630 956 5,586 5,557
Staidéar larchéime Graduare Studses 29] 94 385 356
Ceangail na Tionscolaiocht Technology Transfer 600 329 929 833
An tlonad un Fheabhas Foghlama agus Teagaisc 1,197 349 1,546 1,554
Centre for Exvvellence in Learning & Teaching
Oifig Feabhais Qwaliyy Office 103 138 241 243
13,488 7,177 20,665 20,077
7. Foirgnimh  Premises
Ctram Foirgnimh  Prewises Masntenance 4,305 8,067 12,372 11,543
Scirbhisi Gineardlta General Services 995 2,036 3,031 3,180
Mion Oibreacha Ainor Works 100 100 100
Cios agus Rdtai  Rent and Rates 206 206 232
Arachas  Insurance 1,092 1,092 839
Costas Fuinnimh  Energy Costs 3,691 3,691 3,602

3,300 15,192 20,492 19,496
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Ollscoil na hFireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

%

Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

8.

10.

11.

12.

Tograi Foirgniochta agus Trealaimh Building and Equipping Projects

Pd
Pay
€000
Foirgniocht Buidding
Trealamh Equipment
Riarachdn Administretion

Seirbhisi Riarachan _Adwinistrative Services 11,845

Tailli Gairmivla Professional Fees

Ilchostais  Miscellaneons 710
12,555

Costais Eile Oideachais Genera! Educational Ezpenditure

Seriduithe  Examinations 1,608
Bronnadh na gCéim Conferring 53
Scolaireachtai/Combhaltai Iarchéime

Scholarships/ Posigraduate Fellowships

Tobhach Ollscoil na hEireann  NUI Ley

1,661
Aiseanna agus Conldisti Facilities and Amenities
Deontais Ceannsraithe agus Eile
Capitation and Other Grants
Seirbhisi na Mac Léinn  Szudenz Services 787
Oifig na gCeapachdn  Careers Office 1,016
Cléracha Insroichteach _Aeess Programsmes 1,097
Slainte agus Combhairleoireacht 460
Health and Counselling
3,360
Costais Ilghnéitheacha Miscellaneous Expenditure
Pinsin Bhreise _4dditional Pensions 1,977
Difriocht Malairte  Exvhange Differences
Us iasachta  Loan Interest
1,977

16

N/Pha

Non Pay
€000

6,630
1,727

8,357

3,661
85
3,252

6,998

438
135
4,196

615

5,384

987

4,006
73
684
213

5,963

38
713

751

2019
Tomldn

€000

6,630
1,727

8,357

15,506
85
3,962

19,553

2,046
188
4,196

615

7,045

987

4,793
1,089
1,781

673

9,323

1,977
38
713

2,728

2018
Tomlan

€°000

1,034
2,239

3,273

15,374
144
4,286

19,804

2,022
209
4,067

407

6,705

1,255

5,069
945
1,783
671

9,723

1,911
29

1,940



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

%

Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

13. Caiteachas lomlin Tots/ Expenditure

2019
Pa N/Phd Tomlin
Pay Non Pay
€000 €000 €000
Seirbhisi Acadila agus Seirbhisi Gaolmhara 133,845 62,112 195,957
Academic and Related Services
Deontais Taighde agus Tionscaimh 35,914 35,131 71,045
Research Grants and Projects
169,759 97,243 267,002
14. Dimheas ar Shécmhainni Dochta Depreciation of Fixed Assets
2019
€°000
Foirgnimh  Buildings 14,474
Trealamh Eguipment 5,597
20,071

15, Gluaiseacht sa Chulchiste Ginearalta (Nota 19) General Reserve Movement

2019
€000
Amhichadh 1 geomhréir le dimheas _4dmortisation in line with depreciation (20,071)

(20,071)

17

2018
Tomlan

€000
178,303
61,002

239,305

2018
€000

13,766
3,298

17,064

2018
€000

(17,064)

(17,064)



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

%

Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

16. Sécmhainni Dochta  Fixed Assets
Talamh agus  Obair chaipitil Trealamh 2019 2018
Foirgnimh atd ar sl Tomlin Iomlan
Land & Buildings  Capital WIP Egnipment Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Costas/Luachail ag ts na bliana
Cost/Valuation at start of year

Costas Cost 469,566 2,961 146,097 618,624 586,592
Luachdil Valuation 189,709 - - 189,709 189,709
Iomlan Total 659,275 2,961 146,097 808,333 776,301
Breiseanna ag Costas Additions at Cost 6,860 3,586 11,299 21,745 32,032
Athchatag6irii Recategorisation 555 (1,085) 530 -

Diuscairti Disposals

Costas/Luachail ag deireadh na bliana
Cost/Valuation at end of vear

Costas Cost 476,981 5,462 157,926 640,369 618,624
Luachail Valuation 1 89’709 189,709 189,709
Tomlan Total 666,690 5,462 157,926 830,078 808,333

Dimheas Depreciation

Ag tis na bliana At start of year 222701 - 138,577 361,278 344214
Dimheas don bhliain Depreciation for 14,474 5,597 20,071 17,064
year

Diuscairti Disposals

Ag deireadh na bliana At end of year 237,175 - 144,174 381,349 361,278
Luachiil glan leabhair ag tis na bliana 436,574 2,961 7,520 447,055 432,087
Net book value at start of year

Luachail glan leabhair ag deireadh 429,515 5,462 13,752 448,729 447,055
na bliana

Net book value at end of year

18



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019
%

Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

17.

18.

Féichitinaithe agus Réamhiocaiochtai Debtors and Prepayments

2019 2018

€000 €000
Caiteachas Taighde Researvh Expenditure 24,579 21,821
Iasachtai Tithiochta na Foime Szaff Housing Loans 4 4
Ilfhéichitnaithe agus Réamhiocaiochtai Debtors and Prepayments 13,430 5,454
Fuilligh idir Chuideachtai Inter Company Baiances - 36
Deontais Chaipitil infhaighte 6 Fhondiireacht na hOllscoile 6,578 14,828

Caprtal grants receivable from Galway University Fosndation
44,591 42,143

Is cuideachta faoi theorainn rathajochta agus carthanas claraithe i Fondtireacht Ollscoil na Gaillimhe (GUF). Is
¢ an phriomhfheidhm até 1éi tacajocht airgid agus tacaiochtai eile a ghinitiint don Ollscoil. Nil an Fhondtireacht
a riali ag OF Gaillimh agus ni fhaigheann si aon mhaoinit 6 OE Gaillimh na 6n Stat da cuid gniomhaiochtai
bailithe airgid.

Déanann GUF maoinit ar a chostais oibriochta tri mhuirear lanroghnach a ghearradh ar ioncam deontdiri agus
tri ioncam infheistiochta. Cuireann GUF go mér le gniomhaiochtai caipitil a gus aththillteacha na hOllscoile agus
ta féil ar a thuarascdil bhliantail agus ar a chuntais initichta ar a lithredn gréasain. Is ¢ an polasai ata ag GUF
maoiniii a chur ar fail don Ollscoil nuair a bhionn tionscadail chaipitil curtha i gerich agus nuair a bhionn

caiteachas déanta ar thionscadail athfhillteacha. Aistritear maoinit i geombhréir le nosanna imeachta foirmiiila
atd aontaithe.

Galway University Foundation (GUF) is a company limited by guarantee and a registered charity. lis primary function is to generate
Jinancial and other supports for the University. The Foundation is not controlled by NUI Galway and does not receive any funding either
Jrom NUI Gabpay or the State for its fundraising activities,

GUEF finds its operating expenses through the application of a discretionary levy on donor income and through investment income. GUF
is a major contributor to the University’s capital and recuirrent activities and its annnal report and audited accounts are available on its
website. GUEF policy is to make funds available to the University following completion of capital projects and expenditure on recurrent
projects. Funds are transferred in accordance with agreed formal procedures.

Creidiinaithe Creditors

2019 2018

€000 €°000
Nios hi na bliain amhdin /Due in Jess than one year
Deontais Taighde Neamhchaite Research Grants Unexpended 74,645 83,874
Deontais Rialtais Faighte Roimhré Szate Grants received in advance 5,673 (220)
Tailli Acadtla Faighte Roimhré _4cademic Fees received in advance 32,464 30,278
Fuilligh Inmheénacha Internal Balances 2,613 4,007
Creiditnaithe Eile agus Costais Dlite  Orber Creditors and Accraals 31,471 23,767
Fuilligh idir Chuideachtai Inter Company Balances 208 172

147,074 141,878
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Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliang dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019
%ﬁ_

Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

19. Cilchisti Ginearélta General Reserve
Fuilleach
ag tis
Opening
Balance
€°000
Luachail - Talamh agus Foirgnimh 189,709
Valuation — Land and Buildings
Deontas Caipitil on UAO 198,234
Capital Grant from HEA
Cuntas Joncam agus Caiteachas 120,513
Income and Expenditure Account
Deontais Caipitil Neamhspléach 272,404
Independent Capital Grants
Eile (Aistriv faoi Seirbhisi Coimhdeacha san direamh) 15,061
Otber (Trangfer from Ancillary Services included)
Amuchadh go Cuntas Toncam agus Caiteachas (361,278)
Amortisation to Income and Expenditure Acconnt
434,643

Athru sa Fuilleach
Bhliain ag Deireadh
Current Year Closing

Movement Bzalance
€000 €000
- 189,709

513 198,747
8,357 128,870
11,535 283,939
- 15,061
(20,071) (381,349)

334 434977

20, Creidiunaithe nios mé n4 bliain amhdin  Amouats falling due after more than one year

Méideanna dlite lastigh de bhliain amhain
Amounts falling due in one  year or less

Meéideanna dlite tar éis nios mé na bliain amhéin

Amonnts falling due after more than one year

Idir bliain amhain agus dha bhliain Between one and wo years
Idir dha bhliana agus cuig bliana Between two and five years
Fa chionn ctiig bliana n6 nios mé I five years or more

2019 2018
€°000 €000
867 i
1,733 867
8,000 6,933
49,400 31,200
60,000 39,000

Té cuid den mhaoinit até riachtanach do chlar caiteachais caipitil na hOliscoile curtha ar f4il ag an mBanc
Eorpach Intheistiochta (BEI). Cuirfidh an maoinit seo ar chumas na hOllscoile cldr cuimsitheach infheistiochta
caipitil a chur 1 gerich lena n-diritear aiseanna acadtila agus mac 1éinn a bhfiuil géargha leo. T4 an tsaoraid
inaisioctha thar 25 bliain ar a mhéid (i.e. go dti 2043) agus faoi lathair tabhaionn sé us ag Rata Tairgthe Idirbhainc
an Buro méide corrlach. Is ¢ €nialas an ghné neamhtharraingthe den tsaoraid BEI ar an 30 Meén Fémhair 2019
(2018: €21m). The Eurgpean Investment Bank (EIB) has provided part of the funding necessary for the University’s capital expenditure
programme. This funding will allow the University to complete a comprobensive programpme of capital investment including much needed
acadenic and sindent facilities. The facility is repayable over a masimum of 25 years (r.e. to 2043) and currently incurs interest at Enribor
Dlus a margin. The undrawn element of the EIB facility is €nil at 30 September 2019 (2018: €21m).
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21. Cuntas Rialaithe Pinsean Pension Control Account
2019
Comhscéim
Pinsean
Funded
Scheme
€000
Iarmhéid Tosaigh Opening Balaace (59,461)
Toncam Income
Ranniocaiochtai Fostéra
Employer contributions
i) Ag rata maoinithe reatha na hollscoile 5,280
At existing nniversity funding rate
i1) Ag rata maoinithe 20% ECF
At ECF 20% funding rate
Employer Contributions Remitted
Ranniocaiochtai Fostai Employee contributions 2,246
Ranniocafochtai Fostai tarchurtha
Employee Contributions Remitted
Aithrithe pinsean isteach Pension Tranfors in 21
loncam forliontach Supplementation Inconmse 1,976
Toncam maidir le blianta breise a cheannach 159
Income in respect of the purchase of added years
Eitle/ Maoinisi on UAO 3,380
Other (HEA Funding Received)
Tomlan Total 13,062
Caiteachas / Expenditure
Tocaiocht Pinsean isteach (forlionadh san
aireamh) Pensions in payment (inchuding 18,862
supplenmentation)
focaiochtai cnapshuime ar scor 1,086
Lump sum payments on retirement
focaiochtai bas le linn seirbhise
Death in Service Payment
Aistrithe pinsean amach (airgead tirim)
Pension Transfer out (cash payment)
Aisioc rannfocaiochtai Refinds of contributions 89
Riarachén & Costais
Other Costs / Payments 123
Administration & other costs 281
Iomlin Total 20,441
(Easnainh) /Breis sa bhliain
?Deﬁcit)}Suzp]us In Year (7:379)
%lzl(lfach Deiridh — (infhaighte 6)/inioctha leis an (66,840)
Closing Balance — (receivable from)/payable to
the HEA
Aistrit Fuillligh Balance Transfer 59,247
Closing Balance — (receivable from)/payable to (7,593)
the HEA 4

21

2019
Scéim
Eiseam
1direach
Model
Scheme

€000
48,227

1,511

2,167

87

3,771

322
145

43

271
785

2,986
51,213

(51,214)
(1)

2019

Scéim

Aonar

Single
Scheme

€000
8,478

2,953
(3,078)
1,708

(1,544)

39

(¥

135

118

256
(217)

8,261

(8,033)
228

2018

Comhscéim
Pinsean
Funded
Scheme

€000
(52,302)

3,374

2,163

636
1,910

193
3,200

13,476

18,261

1,933

43

128
270
20,635

(7,159)
(59,461)

56,610
(2,851)

2018

Scéim
Eiseam-
ldireach

Model
Scheme

€000
44,746

2,203

2,100

95

4,398

182
413

41

19

262
917

3,481
48,227

(48,227)
0

2018
Scéim
Aonar
Single
Scheme

€°000
5,840

2,583

(332)
1,417

(1,303)

2,365

111

(389)
(273)

2,638
8,478

(8,383)
95



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medén Fémhair, 2019
%

Nétai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont’d

22. Ciilchiste Reatha Cuzrent Reserve

2019 2018
€000 €°000
Fuilleach ag tis de réir na gcuntas deiridh Opening Balance 3,618 3,247
Breis/(Easnamh) don Bhliain  Swrplus/ (Deficit) Jor year 1,619 371
Fuilleach Deiridh ~ Closing Balance 5,237 3,618

23, Réiteach ar Breis ar an Chuntas Ioncam agus Caiteachas leis an breis glan
(eisreabhadh)/insreabadh airgid 6 ghniomhaiochtai oibrithe
Reconciliation of Income and Expenditure Account susplus to net cash (outfow)/inflow from

operating activities
2019 2018
€000 €000
Breis don Bhliain ~ Surplus for year 1,619 371
Luide Us Fai ghte Glan I ess Ner Interest Received (32) 117
Dimheas Depreviation 20,071 17,064
Amichadh ar Chulchisti Ginearalta _Awmortisation of General Reserves (20,071) (17,064)
Laghdu/(Meadu) ar Fheichitnaithe agus Réamhiocajochtai (10,698) 7,250
Decrease [ (Increase) in Debtors and Prepayments
Méadu /(Laghdti) / ar Chreiditinaithe (Decsease) 4,156 (6,077)
Inorease/ (Decrease) in Creditors (exl eapital )
Glan insreabhadh/(eis-sreabhadh) Airgid 6 Ghniomhaiochtai Oibrithe (4,955) 1,427
Net Cash inflowf (ontflow) from Operating Activities
24, Anailis ar athri in Airgead agus a Chomhionann
Analysis of Change in Cash and Cash Equivalent
2019 2018
€000 €000
Fuilleach ag 1 Deireadh Fomhair  Balance at I October 102,002 105,644
Glan eis-sreabhadly Ne cash outflow (16,451) (3,642)
Fuilleach ag 30 Mean Fomhair Balance at 30 September 85,551 102,002
25. Infheistiochtai Investments
2019 2018
€000 €000
Stoc rialtais stl. Government stocks etc. 68,327 27,849
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26.

27.

Ceangaltais Chaipitil Czpital Commitments

2019 2018
€000 €°000
Ceangaltais conraithe ag 30 Mean Fombhair 7,737 9,026
Commitments contracted ar 30 Septomber
Udaraithe ach gan a bheith conartha ag 30 Meédn Fombhair 13,180 6,856

Authorised but not contracted at 30 S, eptember
20,917 15,882

Faisnéisia Péirtithe Gaolmhara Related Party Disclosures

Mioneolas ar phairtithe gaolmhara abhartha agus idirbheartaiochta na hOllscoile leo mar seo a
leanas:
Details of material related parties and the University’s transactions therewith are as follows:

Maoin Champais Teo Fochuideachta ar leis an Ollscoil ¢ ina hioml4ine, a chuireann foirgnimh ar f4il faoi
thearmai léasa, le haghaidh oideachais na mac 1éinn.

T4 an Ollscoil ag leanacht lena tacaiocht 6 thaobh riachtanas caipiteal oibre an chomhlachta agus ar 30
Meén Fomhair, 2019 bhi fiacha de €3,509 ag an Ollscoil ar an geuideachta (2018: €27,671).

Maoin Champais Teo is a wholly owned subsidiary company that provides property under lease terms for
the provision of education to students. The University continues Io support the working capital
requirements of the Company and as of 30 September, 2019 the University owed €3,509 to the company
(2018: €27,671).

Tionél Teo Fochuideachta ar leis an Ollscoil é ina hiomldine, agus is i an phriomhghniomhaiocht ata aici
na gniomhaiochtai comhdhélacha na hOllscoile a laimhsedil. T4 an chuideachta seo 4 foirceannadh faoi
lathair. T4 iasacht de €62,775 tugtha ag an Ollscoil don chomhlacht, ar a bhfuil solathar iomlan déanta do.
Ni raibh aon athri ar an iasacht seo ag 30 Mean Fémhair 2019 agus 2018. Chomh maith leis sin, ar 30 Medn
Foémhair, 2019 bhi € 0 dlite on Ollscoil (2018: bhi fiacha de €0 ag an Ollscoil).

Tiondl Teo is a wholly owned subsidiary company and its principal function is to operate the University
conferencing activifies. This company is in the process of being wound up. The University has loaned
€62,775 to it, which is fully provided for. There has been no change to this loan balance as of 30 September
2019 and 2018. In addition, as of 30 September, 2019 €0 was owed 1o the company (2018: €0).

UCG Research Applications Ltd: Fochuideachta ar lantinéireacht atd arna corpmil mar eintiteas
sealbhaiochta d'infheistiochtai na hOllscoile i geuideachiai maoine intleachtila (IP), go priombha, a bhfuil
baint ghniomhach €igin ag an Ollscoil leo. Ar 30 Mean Fémhair, 2019 bhi fiacha de €91,834 ag an Ollscoil
ar an gcuideachta (2018: €93,096).

UCG Research Applications Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated as a holding entiy
Jor the University’s investments in, predominanthy, intellectual property (IP) companies in which it has some active
involvement. As of 30 September, 2019, the University owed €91,834 to the company (2018: €93,096 ).

CCG Aonad Sliinte do Mhic Léinn Teoranta: Is cuideachta faoi theorainn réthaiochta ¢ nach bhfuil
scairchaipiteal aici. Is ¢ priomhghniomhaiocht na cuideachta feidhmit an ionaid sléinte in OEG. Ar 30
Meén Fémhair, 2018 bhi fiacha de €100,234 ag an Ollscoil ar an geuideachta (2018: €41,235).

CCG Aonad Sliinte do MhicLéinn Teoranta is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share
capital. Its principal activity is the operation of the health centre in NUIG., As of 30 September, 2019, the University
owed €100,234 to the company (2018: €41,235),

23



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

%‘_

Notai faoi na cuntais, ar lean | Notes to the Accounts cont'd

27,

Faisnéisin Pairtithe Gaolmhara, ar lean Related Party Disclosures con'd

Atalia Student Residences Limited: Is fochuideachta ar lantinéireacht é ati arna corpru leis na harais
chonaithe do mhic 1éinn, Goldcrest agus Baile na Coiribe, a chur 4 bhfeidhmit thar ceann na hOllscoile.
Leanann an Ollscoil de bheith ag tact le riachtanais chaipitil oibre na Cuideachta agus ar 30 Mean Fémhair
2019, bhi €2,691 (2018: €35,860) dlite don Ollscoil.

Atalia Student Residences Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated to operate the student
residences of Golderest and Corrib Village on bebaif of the Universizy, The Uhniversity continnes to support the working
capital requirements of the Comapany and as of 30 September 2019 was owed €2,691 (2018: €35,860).

Campus Radio Limited: Fochuideachta ar leis an Ollscoil é ina hiomldine agus leanann si de bheith ag
freastal ar riachtanais siamsajochta raidié na mac léinn tri leibhéal, go priomha, i gceantar Chathair na
Gaillimhe. Ni raibh aon chomharduithe idirchuideachta ann amhail an 30 Mean Fémhair 2019 na 2018, Ar
30 Meén Fombhair, 2019 bhi fiacha de €14,005 ag an Ollscoil ar an geuideachta (2018: €9,276).

Campus Radio Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the University and continues to mee, primarily, the radio
entertainment needs of third-level students in the Galvay City area. As of 30 September, 2019, the University owed
€74,005 10 the company (2018: €9,276).

Galway University Press Limited. Ba fochuideachta de chuid na hOllscoile a bhi inti ar feadh na mblianta
agus, de bhri go raibh si diomhaoin go buntisach le ctipla bliain anuas, t4 an chuideachta i mbun 4 foirceannadh.
Ar 30 Medn Fémbhair, 2019 bhi fiacha de €780 ag an Ollscoil ar an geuideachta (2018: €438).

Galway University Press Limited was a University subsidiary in prior “years and, dug to be being essentially

dormant for a nnmber of years it is in the process of being wound up. As of 30 September, 2019, the University owed
€780 1o the company (2018: €438).
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27.

Faisnéisiu Pairtithe Gaolmhara, ar lean Related Party Disclosures con'd

Chomh maith leis na péirtithe gaolmhara 4bhartha thuas luaite ta scaireanna ag an Ollscoil sna haonain

seo a leanas I addition to the above material related parties, the University also holds minority shareholdings in the

Jollowing enrities
g promh Chatombainc
Interest % %
Theta Chemicals Ltd. Development of chemicals 18.57% 18.57%
Analyse IQ Ltd. Software consultancy/supply 10.00% 10.00%
Qpercom Ltd. Consultancy 15.00% 15.00%
Peracton Ltd. Software consultancy/supply 10.00% 10.00%
MDG Web Ltd. Database activities 8.63% 8.63%
Orbsen Therapeutics Lid. Medical practice activities 6.23% 6.23%
Slainte Beoga Teoranta Manufacture of pharmaceutical products 7.00% 7.00%
NVP Energy Ltd. Software supply 10.60% 10.00%
Loci Therapeutics Ltd. Orthopaedic implants technology 2.52% 2.52%
Bioprobe Therapeutics Ltd. Technology for the detection of legionella 9.65% 9.65%
Sedicii Innovations Ltd. Software Development 7.50% 7.50%
Onkimmume Ltd. Cancer Immunotherapies 2.00% 2.00%
HVAC Remote Monitoring Ltd. Energy Efficiency 5.00% 5.00%
Signum Surgical Ltd. Gastrointestinal Devices 3.33% 3.33%
Vetex Medical Ltd. Cardiovascular Devices 10.00% 10.00%
Neurent Medical Ltd. Device for the treatment of rhinitis 4.30% 4.30%
Kite Medical Ltd. Device for the detection of kidney reflux 5.66% 5.66%
Atnian Medical Lid. Device for the treatment of atrial fibrillation 7.50% -

Galway University Foundation Limited: T4 an t-aonn seo, nach bhfuil faoi smacht na hOllscoile, ag
obair chun tacaiocht airgeadais a thabhair do chlair chaipitil, acadila agus tacaiochta acadula na hOllscoile.
Airfonn na raitis airgeadais tionchar aon mhaoinithe faighte agus infhaighte on geuideachta seo.

Galway University Foundation Limited: This entity, which is not controlled by the University, is engaged in
Lenerating financial support for University capital, academic and acadensic support programmes. These financial statements
include the impact of any funding received and receivable from this company.
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28. Coigeartii don Bhliain roimhe seo Prior Year Adjustment

As previously stated Adjustment Restated

2018 2018 2018

€'000 €'000 €'000
Academic Fee Income Note 2 €119,393 -€2,768 €116,625
Academic Departments Note § -€100,053 €2,768 -€97,285

Ba ¢ an tionchar a bhi ag coigearti na bliana roimhe sin ioncam 6 thailli (néta 2) a laghdi €2.7m agus caiteachas a thabhaionn

Ranna Acadula (Né6ta 5) a laghd( €2.7m. Ni raibh aon tionchar foriomlan ar an mbarrachas don bhliain.

The inspact of the prior year adjustment was to reduce fee income (note 2) by €2.7m and rednce Academic Departments expenditure (Note5 )

by €2.7m. There was no impact on the surplus for the year.

29. Eachtrai ina dhiadh deireadh na bliana Subsequent Events

Ta an Ollscoil ag déanamh dlithfhaireachéin ar thionchar na réige coréivireas COVID-19 a bhuail an Eoraip i Mérta 2020,
tar éis rdig den chineél céanna sa tSin ag deireadh mhi na Nollag 2019.

Cé gurb ¢ an imni bhunusach sabhdilteacht agus folldine mac Iéinn, foirne agus phobal 4r gcampas, ta an Ollscoil ag
forbairt pleananna maolaithe chun déilesil le tionchar airgeadais na géarchéime ata ag teacht chun cinn.

Chomh maith le hanailis jogaireachta loncaim & Caiteachais, taimid ag samhaltu tdstélacha struis troma ar ar getinaint
1asachta agus creidimid go mbeidh an tsolibthacht riachtanach againn chun 6més a thabhairt do na ctinaint sin.

The University is closely monitoring the impact of the coronavirus COVID-19 outbreak that struck Europe in March 2020
following a similar outbreak in China in late December 2019.

2

While the fundamental concern is the safety and wellbeing of students, staff, and our campus community, the University is
developing mitigation plans to deal with the financial impact of the evolving crisis.

In addition to Income & Expenditure sensitivity analysis, we are modelling severe stress tests on our loan covenants and we
believe that we will have the necessary flexibility to honour those covenants.
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30. Réiteach UAO go dti breis i bhformaid FRS102 Reconciliation of HEA to FRS102-format surplus

2019 2018
€000s €000s

Breis de réir Raitis Airgeadais i bhformaid UAO

. L619 3
Sutplus as per HEA-format financial statements /61 7

Amuchadh deontas caipitil Capizal grant amortisation 8,266 5,940
Cal ar mhaoinit tionscadail caipitil 6 RIC
Reversal of capital project funding from SOCI
Coigeartii ar ioncam 6 ghnjomhaiochtai taighde

8,357 3,273

Adjustment to income from research activity (357 8,192

Tionchar glan 6 ghniomhaiocht féchuideachai ilghneitheach

Net impact from miiscellaneous subsidiaties activity 416 799
Caiteachas caipitil ailinithe Capital expenditure aligned 474 161
Tionchar glan 6 chaiteachas fabhraithe ilchostas ar jontralacht tar éis deireadh na bliana 763 (70)
Nez impact of accred sundyy expenditure for post-year end entries

Coigeartii ar shdemhainni airgeadais a mbaineann luach leo - ¢}
Adjusiment for financial assets carrying vaiue

Culu glaniarmhéideanna inmheanacha Ne internal balances reversal (1,394) 940
Dimheas (fochuideachtai san direamh) Depreciation (including subsidiaries) (16,851) (13,759)
Tionchar fabhraithe pa saoire Holiday pay accrual impact (104) (81)
Coigeartt ar solathar do dhrochthiaca Adjustment to provision for bad debts (252) 400

Sintitiis 6 aondin neamh rialtais and tobhach na mac Iéinn do thograi caipiteal

Donations from non-government entities and student levy Jor capital projects 1,589 1,543

Breis de réir raitis airgeadais comhdhhiite FRS102

y X;
Surplus as per consolidated FRS102 financial statements 2326 7,708
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Statement of Responsibility

The University is required to comply with the Universities Act 1997 and to keep in such form as
may be required by the Harmonisation of Financial Accounts agreement as adopted by all Irish
Universities all proper and usual accounts of money received and expended by it. In preparing those
accounts, the University is required to:

® Select suitable accounting policies that are in accordance with the Harmonisation of Financial
Accounts agreement and apply them consistently;

® Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

® DPrepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless that basis is inappropriate.

The University is responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose at any time the
financial position of the University and which enable it to ensure that its financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Harmonisation of Financial Accounts agreement and comply with
the Universities Act 1997. The University is also responsible for safeguarding all assets under its
operational control and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

A separate set of financial statements will be prepared to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles in Ireland and the UK whereas these financial statements, prepared for the Higher
Education Authority, are prepared in accordance with the Harmonisation of Financial Accounts
Agreement.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the terms of the foregoing statement
of responsibilities and have been audited by KPMG, the management auditor of the University.

It should be noted that the Comptroller and Auditor General is the statutory auditor of the
University.

On behalf of the University Authority

(b/\)_/))—\

19 Marta 2020
Date

President
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Buzrsat’s Report

Bursar’s Report on HEA ‘Harmonised’ Financial Statements

Introduction

The attached financial statements are prepared under sector agreed ‘HEA Harmonised’ accounting
policies & principles that reflect the teaching, research and related service activities of the University.
The external audit report by KPMG at pages 6-7 (Gaeilge) and 32-33 (English) records their opinion
that the statements have been properly prepared in accordance with those policies.

Overview

The University is pleased once again to report an operating surplus of €1.6m for the year ended 30%
September 2019 (2018: €0.4m). The University continues to effectively manage its affairs and associated
risks against a backdrop of limited Government funding. The uncertain impact of Britain’s exit from the
EU continues to pose a major threat to the Irish economy with potential negative financial impacts
nationally and correspondingly for the University.

As demographic projections have shown, the trend is for increasing numbers of second level students
taking the leaving certificate examination coupled with increases in the proportion progressing to third
level education. These trends are reflected in attached accounts as noted below under ‘Operating
Results’. The general economic outlook remains favourable with buoyant fiscal returns and the number
of people on the “live register’ (availing of or claiming unemployment assistance) at its lowest level for
the past decade.

As the University launches its ambitious strategic plan for the coming five years, it does so with an
increased emphasis on non-state income streams. Foremost in this category is that of Post graduate and
non-EU student fees as well as high standard ‘on-campus’ student accommodation and associated
summer lettings.

Operating Results

The reported surplus for the year at €1.6m is attributable in no small part to increased fee income and
well controlled costs. Fee income has risen by €6m due to a combination of increased student numbers,
increased fees and a change in mix of students, which has also generated additional Government Grant
income via the ‘RGAM” funding mechanism. Staff costs have increased by €16m during the year due to
a mix of increased Contract Research, restoration of pay cuts, annual increments, actuarial impacts for
pension and increased staff headcount.

Liquidity

The continuing strong level of liquidity displayed in the Statement of Financial Position reflects the
business model in which the University operates with much of its core funding being ‘front loaded’. One
cause of concern, across the sector, is the balance due from Government in relation to pensions as can
be seen in the increase in pension debtor in 2019 (Note 21) which has risen to €7.4m (2018: €2.8m).

Cash & Investments

During the year the University approved an investment strategy and appointed new investment advisors
and investment managers. The physical transfer of funds was taking place at the end of the financial year
resulting in a higher cash balance than usual. Within two months of the year-end, a total
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of €50m was under investment in medium and long-term instruments. A further €10m is held in cash
under the stewardship of our investment managers.

Bursar’s Report (continned)

Significant Capital Developments

September 2018 saw the opening of Golderest, our new student residence comprising of 429 beds.
This resulted in a significant increase in rental income for the University during the year. The income
is used to service the European Investment Bank (EIB) loan interest and repayments, the first capital
repayment falling due in July 2020. In June 2019, we drew down a further €21m, the second tranche of
the EIB loan. This will facilitate commencement of development and construction of Golderest 1] (674
beds), for which planning permission was granted during the year.

The University secured €15m towards its learning commons, a reimagined library space for the twenty
first century. The funding was a result of a competitive bid to the Higher Education Authority’s
Strategic Initiative Fund (HESIF). Realisation of the project, over the coming years, will require
investment of both Philanthropy and University funds.

The University also embarked on a project to replace its twenty-year old student records system and at
the end of 2019 we will conclude an essential investment in the maintenance of our historic and iconic
Quadrangle building.

Conclusion

While the range of challenges facing the University are many and varied, its continued success is
assured by virtue of its committed teams who deliver day in, day out, on its strategic objectives, high
teaching and research standards, and professional services.

\/é*&m‘ﬁ)}_lu Date & .13 . 220

Sharon Bailey, FCCA, AITI, MSc Mgmt
Sparanai / Bursar
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Financial Highlights

RECURRENT INCOME 2018-2019

o State Grants €53m 20%
o Student Feey €123m 46%
Research Grant €7 1 26%

e Other Income €21 m 8%

The total income for the year increased by 11%.

RECURRENT EXPENDITURE 2018-2019

®  _Academic/Research  €209m 78%
o Building €28.8m  11%
Adwinistration €19 5m 7%

e Student Services €7m 3%
s Other €2.7m 1%

Total excpenditure increased by 11%.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2018-2019
®  Buildings €104m  48%

o Eguipment €11.3m  52%

The financial statements show eapiial expenditure during the year of €21.7m which is Jurther analysed as €10.4m building
and €11.3m equipment.

CAPITAL FUNDING 2018-2019
o HEA €0.5m 4%
o Non-Siate €11.5m 96%

Capital Funding credited during the year was €1 2m and is ana fysed above as to ifs sosrees.

31



Ollscoil na hEireann, Gaillimh Cuntais na bliana dar chrioch 30 Medn Fémhair, 2019

%

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO UDARAS NA hOLLSCOILE ON THE HEA FUNDING
STATEMENTS OF THE NATIONAL UNIVERSITY OF IRELAND, GALWAY

1. Report on the audit of the Funding Statements
Opinion

We have audited the HEA Funding Statements (“F unding Statements”) of the National University of Ireland, Galway
(‘the University’) for the year ended 30 September 2019 which comprise the Income and Expenditure Account, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. These Funding Statements have been prepared for the
reasons set out in the Statement of accounting policies and have been prepared in accordance with the Harmonisation
of Accounts agreement, as adopted by Irish Universities, and the accounting policies set out on pages 34 to 36.

In our opinion, the Funding Statements have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
accounting policies set out on pages 34 to 36, which have been designed to give effect to the most recent
Harmonisation of Accounts agreement.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the andit of the Funding Statements section of our report. We are independent of the University in accordance with
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of Funding Statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard
issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
nappropriate or there 1s an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the Funding Statements. We have nothing to
report in these respects.

Other information

The University is responstble for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the Funding
Statements. The other information comprises the information included in the Bursar’s report and the financial
highlights. ‘The Funding Statements and our auditor’s report thereon do not comprise part of the other information.
Our opinion on the Funding Statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
andit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our Funding
Statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the Funding Statements or
our audit knowledge. Based solely on that wortk we have not identified material misstatement in the other information.

Opinions on other matters on which we are required to report under the terms of our engagement
We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.

The Funding Statements are in agreement with the accounting records and, in our opinion, adequate accounting
records have been kept by the University.
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Report on the audit of the Funding Statements (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In connection with our audit of the Funding Statements, ISAs (Ireland) require that we read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether that information is materially inconsistent with the Funding Statement or our
knowledge obtained from our audit work, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

ISAs (Ireland) require that we repott to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have
wdentified information in the Annual Report that contains a material inconsistency with either that knowledge or the
Funding Statements, a material misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise musleading. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of the University for the Funding Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibility set out on page 28, the University 1s required to comply
with the Universities Act 1997 and to keep in such form as may be required by the Harmonisation of Financial
Accounts agreement adopted by all Irish Universities all proper and usual accounts of money received and expended
by it.

In preparing the Funding Statements, Udards na hOllscoile is responsible for assessing the University’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless it either intends to liquidate the University or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Funding Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Funding Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Funding Statements.

A fuller  description  of our responsibilities is  provided on  IAASA’s  website  at
https:/ /www.inasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1c£6-458b-9b8f-
98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsiblities_for_audit.pdf

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to Udaris na nOllscoile, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
dated 10 September 2019. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to Udaris na nOllscoile those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the University and Udaras na nOllscoile, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Cliona Mullen &~ "= 27 March 2020
for and on behalf of
KPMG

Chartered Accountants
Dockgate, Dock Road, Galway
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Statement of Accounting Policies

A

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements reflect the teaching, research and related service activities of the University.

The Financial Statements of the University’s pension schemes and of the University’s financially
independent ancillary activities are prepared annually and audited separately.

Accounting Convention

'The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the
revaluation of land and buildings. ‘They are prepared so as to present the University’s financial
nformation in accordance with the existing Harmonisation of Financial Statements agreement as
adopted for all Irish Universities. These accounting policies have been designed to give effect to the
Harmonisation of Financial Statements agreement.

The Harmonisation of Financial Statements agreement does not comply with generally-accepted
accounting practice (GAAP). Consolidated financial statements that comply with GAAP are prepared
separately.

State Grants for Recurrent Expenditure

Recurrent Grants have been recognised on an accruals basis. Recurrent Grant which has been used
for the purchase of fixed assets is transferred to the General Reserve.

Grants for Capital Expenditure

State Grants approved by the Higher Education Authority for capital expenditure are included in the
Financial Statements of the period to the extent of cash received.

Other capital expenditure grants are accrued following the completion of the related capital project or
to the extent of cash received, depending on the associated terms and conditions of the project
agreement.

Fee and Interest Income

Fee income (including student levies receivable) is accounted for on an accruals basis and reported
net of reductions in the fee income line in the income and expenditure account.

Interest income is recorded on an accruals basis in the period to which it relates.
Approved Allocations
The Income and Expenditute Account is prepared on an accruals basis with the following exceptions:

() non-pay expenditure of academic departments and certain service departments;
(1) departmental equipment and minor works.

In these cases, expenditure is included on the basis of approved budgets and internal balances are
carried forward in the Balance Sheet under Current Assets or Liabilities, as appropriate.
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Statement of Accounting Policies cont’d

G Fixed Assets and Depreciation

All fixed assets are stated at historical cost with the exception of Land and Buildings. Buildings that
were completed at 30 September 1998 were revalued internally, on an individual basis, at the current
replacement value at that date less the related depreciation charge. Buildings constructed during the
year are stated at their historical cost and are assumed to have a useful life of 50 years. Land was also
revalued at current use value at 30 September 1998.

Buildings under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects' certificates
and other direct costs incurred to the financial year end. They are not depreciated until they are
brought into use.

Equipment costing less than €10,000 per individual item is written off to the income and expenditure
account in the year of acquisition.

The estimated useful lives of fixed assets by reference to which depreciation has been calculated on
a straight-line basis are as follows: -

Buildings 50 years
Computer Equipment 3 years
Furniture and Equipment 5 years

Land is not depreciated

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable.

H General Reserve

The general reserve represents the value of funding, after amortisation, applied for capital purposes,
together with the results from Ancillary Services.

I Research Grants and Projects

Contract research expenditure is shown net of contributions to indirect costs. Income from contract
research grants 1s included in the Income and Expenditure account to the extent that the related
expenditure has been incurred. Contract research contribution to the University’s indirect costs is
included in ‘other income’. Fixed Assets financed from contract research grants are capitalised 1n the
balance sheet

J Foreign Currencies

Costs denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Euro at the
rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The resulting profits or losses are dealt with in
the Income and Expenditure account.
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Statement of Accounting Policies cont’d

K Taxation

No provision has been made for taxation, as the University holds tax exempt status.

L Ancillary Services

Ancillary Services are services provided on campus on a cost recovery basis, and are planned to
breakeven in the medium term. Investment income on the infrastructural Development fund is
included under this heading. The net outturn on such activities is transferred to the General Reserve
accoutt.

M Pensions

The University operates the following defined- benefit pension schemes: Joint Pension Scheme (JPS
or ‘Funded Scheme’); Model Pension Scheme (MPS or ‘Model Scheme’) and the Single Public Service
Pension Scheme (‘Single Scheme’). The basic retirement pensions of members are funded by
contributions at pre-determined rates of pensionable pay. Increases in basic retirement pensions are
charged to the Income and Expenditure account of the University. Employer conttibutions to the
defined benefit schemes are charged to the income and expenditure account of the University in
tandem with the employees’ salary and wage costs. The net cash flow position of both defined benefit
schemes combined, is accounted for as an asset or liability as appropriate and the funds are paid to
or accrued as due from the Irish State. The cash flows of both schemes are detailed in the notes to
the accounts.

A Personal Retirement Savings Account (PRSA) pension facility is also available for staff not eligible
for enrolment in the defined-benefit schemes. It is administered by a third party insurance company.

N Stock

Stocks, the majority of which are laboratory consumables, stationery and building materials, arc stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

¢

) Investments

Investments are stated at their historical cost less provision for impairment, if any. These include
cash balances held within investment portfolios.
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